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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Committee meeting is now in
session. Today is March the 23' 1 , 2010, and the time is nine o'clock. At this
time, the Chairman would like to recognize the Members that are present this
morning. We do have Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Morning. Member Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, bruddah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members Johnson and
our Council Chair, Mr. Mateo. Members, we do have several people that have
signed up for public testimony but before we go into that, the Chair would like to
recognize the Committee Staff supporting our Committee. We do have
Legislative Analyst Gayle Revels as well as Scott Kaneshina. Secretary is
Yvette Bouthillier With us this morning from Administration, we do have the
Budget Director Mr. Fred Pablo, and Mr. Gen Iinuma from the Civil Defense.
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Again, First Deputy Corporation Counsel, Ms. Traci Fujita Villarosa. Members,
before I call on. . .for public testimony, Chair just received this e-mail from our
Analyst Scott Jensen in regards to the House version of the hotel room tax.
According to the message that I got. . .although she did not have yet any specific
figures, Kim said she is also looking at taking a portion of the $100 million a year
hotel room tax now going to the counties. The House version of the Hotel Room
Tax Bill capped the County's annual portion at $94 million, but Kim says that
could change. We are looking at dropping that cap. The House cap...that's the
House cap. We are looking at lowering the cap a little bit more than a little
bit. . .Ms. Kim said. So just to be aware that we still not out of the works
regarding the TAT taking...being taken away by the, the State Legislature. So we
need to keep our people apprised, our Representatives and Senators, to support the
counties in regards to this particular House Bill, 1744. Thank you. Again, we do
have four people signed up for public testimony at this time. For those that are
testifying this morning, you do have three minutes to testify. Chair will give you
one minute to conclude your testimony. If you could provide us with your name
and the organization that you represent the, Chair and the Committee would
appreciate that. This morning we do have signed up for public testimony Curt
Morimoto. Mr. Morimoto, if you could?
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. MORIMOTO: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla. Good morning, Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. MORIMOTO: I had submitted my testimony via e-mail yesterday 'cause I wasn't
sure if I was going to be able to make it, but since I'm here I'll go ahead and just
read it. For those who don't know me, my name is Curt Morimoto, and I'm the
Operations Manager for American Medical Response, Maui County. Maui
County has benefited from a medically staffed MedEvac helicopter since
September 2004. This year, the matching County funds have been left out of the
Mayor's budget. To date, 275 patients have been transported on Maui MedEvac.
Patients from Hana, Kaupo, West Maui, Kahakuloa, Kahoolawe, Lanai, Molokai,
and even Kalaupapa have been transported. Patients with life-threatening injuries
from shark bites, bends, gunshot wounds, motor vehicle collisions have all
benefited from rapid transport to definitive treatment. Transported cardiac
patients and stroke patients had successful therapy because time is tissue when
vital organs are involved. Lives have been saved. Debilitating conditions have
been minimized or eliminated. And what I mean by that is we have transported
patients who have had signs of strokes before transport, namely distortion of their
face, neurological signs, slurred speech. They have been transported by the
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helicopter only to be treated by the stroke team at Maui Memorial and had all
those symptoms resolved. Patients have been flown to hospitals on Oahu and to
Maui for care. Maui Memorial Medical Center has begun construction of their
helipad so that the time from onset to the time of treatment will even improve.
During the recent tsunami alert, our MedEvac team was dedicated for any
emergencies at no extra cost. It was in place, ready to assist our entire County if
the damage left roads impassible and neighborhoods cutoff--just as it was used
when Honoapiilani Highway was closed due to brush fires, and when the
earthquake left roads and bridges impassible in Kipahulu. These emergency plans
for MedEvac response stayed in place throughout the road closures as well as
while debris and earthquake damage repairs were being performed on
Piilani Highway after the October 15, 2006 earthquake. It is my hope that you
will find this lifesaving program to be essential and cost effective when the total
costs are shared with the State. I'm here for questions if you have any, but thank
you very much for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Moromoto [sic],
for being here this morning, we appreciate that. What is the County's share? And
I know you've told me the amount, but I just want to make sure that the public
hears what our share would be for the bi-annual budget...I mean our Budget for
the 2010-2011.
MR. MORIMOTO: The County's share--let me verify that--is 672,215.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six hundred and seventy-two thousand, two
hundred and fifty [sic] dollars.
MR. MORIMOTO: That's correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the, the other question I had for you,
what's an average response time--let's use Hana, you, know, I'm just going to use
Hana right as okay--from here to Hana, pick up someone, bring him back?
What's the average response time from notification to delivery?
MR. MORIMOTO: We have had actually many transports from Hana. From
notification to delivery, we're talking probably about 45 minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Forty-five.
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MR. MORIMOTO: That includes the delivery. That includes either the landing at the
heliport or now War Memorial, and then another ground ambulance transport to
the hospital. So there is a little bit of extra added on to that that will be minimized
once the helipad at Maui Memorial is built.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And on an average year, how many deliveries have
you guys performed? I know there's some years more, some years less, but let's
use an average over the last three years.
MR. MORIMOTO: I have that broken down. I would say the average would be...it
looks like . . .
. . . ooh, probably 20 to 30, somewheres [sic] in there. Just looking at the, the
numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the majority...
MR. MORIMOTO: There was a... in 2005, if you folks remember when there was that
air ambulance fixed wing crash, the numbers for the MedEvac increased
dramatically because that was the only means to transport critical patients to
Oahu. So there was quite a spike in 2005 and 2006, and then it kind of tapers off,
`cause then we began doing more scene calls. And currently because there's two
actual fixed wing carriers, well, we're pretty much doing a lot of scene calls.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess the, the...it begs to say that what is the
value of a life especially when you're talking in the outlying districts where, you
know, no matter how hard you try, if you try to drive an ambulance or any kind
emergency vehicle in it takes an enormous amount of time. And my experiences
in the years working out in Lahaina, ambulance bringing in patients to Maui
Memorial generally that 35 to 40 minutes usually spelled fatalities or...and/or,
you know, major setbacks in their injury recovery. And because stabilization is
always very difficult 'cause there's nothing in the area to help stabilize the
patient. Is that...am I correct in saying that?
MR. MORIMOTO: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MORIMOTO: And, Mr. Victorino, if I can share? Just Saturday, early Saturday
morning, actually Sunday morning, there was a mission to Molokai for a critical
trauma patient, and the MedEvac took 28 minutes to get there. They were there
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for 16 minutes while they waited for the ground ambulance to load, and they were
33 minutes back to Maui. So I mean that, that tells you how, how fast we can get
patients to the definitive care.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Morimoto. I, I hope my colleagues
and I will work very diligently to somehow find some monies for this. I think it's
something that we need to keep here in the...especially a tri-isle County like ours,
and because of the west side being so inaccessible, Hana being, you know,
where...way out there and not being able to bring people in, in a very timely
manner I would love to see this continue somehow, someway. So we...you have
my commitment to work towards it, and I will wait and let other Members ask
questions. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Morimoto -MR. MORIMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --couple questions.
MR. MORIMOTO: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Number one, there are two companies that are providing
services, and I understand that both companies are fixed wing type aircrafts. Am
I right or?
MR. MORIMOTO: That's correct, sir. Hawaii Air Ambulance and AirMed Hawaii are
the current providers of fixed wing, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And for those fixed wing aircrafts to provide the type of
services that you provide for...especially on Maui where, you know, you go out
with your helicopter and you land at a certain location, pick up the patient, and
come back to the hospital--for a fixed wing aircraft it would be. . .if you're going
to Hana, then it's going to be Hana Airport. If you're going to Lahaina, probably
the airport in Kapalua. So the response time, though is, is the most critical part of,
you know, getting a patient back to the hospital. In regards to the difference, I, I
can see the difference regarding a helicopter and a fixed wing airplane. So I, I
know the MOA with the State expires June 30 th regarding the services. Do you
know with, the current MOA, would be extended beyond June 30th?
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MR. MORIMOTO: My understanding is that the a e Legislature has already put aside
their portion of the monies for the next fiscal year -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MORIMOTO: --to continue to fund the helicopter operations in Maui County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And then. . .maybe I'll ask Mr. Lo about the
helipad. So thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Morimoto?
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Good morning,
Mr. Morimoto. Thank you for being here and your testimony. Just some
follow-up. So the County's share is $672,215. What is the State's share?
MR. MORIMOTO: Oh, you know, it is slightly more. I can have somebody address
that, but through the years the total has gone up, I believe, by 10 percent. The
County has gone up from 611,500 initially in 2004 to the 672. The State's portion
is even a little bit more. I'm not sure about the history--why there is a little bit of
a difference now, but the State's portion is a little bit more currently.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I'm looking at a figure and tell me if it's still the
current figure or around that area of 784,579 for the State.
MR. MORIMOTO: That's correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And now this, this agreement
for this service between the State and the County was developed over a legislative
Act, is that correct?
MR. MORIMOTO: That's correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so was there. . .on this Act, was there a
time or a date that the Act would no longer provide this service? Or was the Act
for. . .until it was changed?
MR. MORIMOTO: You know Act 2 is the Act. I don't recall there being language as
far as any, any drop, drop-dead, end. . .type of clause.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that. And just a comment to
you that we certainly have benefited and, and been appreciative of your service in
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the East Maui area, in Hana, Kipahulu, and Kaupo in recent years and, and your
response to those areas to transport people in need of medical services at the
medical center. So thank you for that service that you guys provided for East
Maui.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And certainly along with Member Victorino, I will
be working hard to see what we can do to maintain and retain this service. Thank
you.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you very much, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. No questions, but I
also wanted to say mahalo to the services that have been provided for the
neighbor islands--Lanai, as well as for Molokai--for those real critical transports.
So it's something that I want to continue to support. Yeah.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you very much, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? If not, thank you,
Mr. Morimoto.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I got a question.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I don't know if this applies, but we just honored
three people from Keanae. And I'm not saying that you guys should take this hit,
but they were saying that you need a emergency station there because it had taken
45 minutes for someone . . . (inaudible). . . Are you people called when these kind
of circumstances occur?
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MR. MORIMOTO: Absolutely. 911 is our, is our dispatch center at the police station.
They will call ground ambulance. Depending on the nature of the call, we can
activate the MedEvac immediately or we can wait `til we get on scene and see if
the need dictates the, you know, requirement for the MedEvac. I'm not sure of
the details of this call, but certainly that MedEvac could be dispatched as soon as
the ground ambulance is dispatched.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I, I guess maybe, maybe there needs to be
some more coordination, because 45 minutes is a hell of a long time before
someone came to Keanae to rescue those people. And I'm just, you know, I, I,
you know, just as you get praised, I still want to be critical about it and, and
wonder why--we could have lost two lives there, perhaps, because it took that
long.
MR. MORIMOTO: Yeah. The closest ambulance to respond there would be the Hana
ambulance that's stationed at Hana Health, and that's probably pretty accurate
with the time going through the roadways. Even with, you know, lights and siren
on Hana Highway, you still can only go so fast . . .(laughter). . . So it wouldn't
surprise me that it probably took 45 minutes for the ambulance to get there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, so, so they would not have called you people for
this rescue?
MR. MORIMOTO: The dispatching of the helicopter, the guidelines are, are pretty clear
that it needs to be either a police sergeant and above, a medic who is on the scene.
A bystander cannot just call 911 and say send a helicopter. The, the guidelines
were set up so that there needs to be protocol by someone who, with expertise to
say whether or not it was necessary to active the, the helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Ah . . .
MR. MORIMOTO: So in this case, you know, if it took a first responder to get there 45
minutes, even though they may have told dispatch hey, send a helicopter, send a
helicopter, the protocols does not call for dispatch of the helicopter just because
somebody says send that helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it. Thank you.
MR. MORIMOTO: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you. And thank you, Mr. Morimoto,
for being here this morning. Obviously, there's no question about the value of
your service. You know, it's the story of if it's your mother, your son, your child,
or somebody you love. . .what is that life worth? You know, there's no way of
putting a value on it. But what I wanted to ask you was about the, about the
service itself. Who...what kind of persons are available on your evacuation
team? Is there a doctor present or is it just a well-trained EMT or what is it?
MR. MORIMOTO: The crew is made up of one paramedic and one EMT. They do have
special training, what we call Level 2 training so that they are aware of, of, you
know, avionics and, and how to take care of patients in the air that may be a little
bit different with the pressures and all compared to a ground ambulance. So they
do have additional training, but it's basically a paramedic, an EMT, a pilot. At
night, they have two pilots.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. So the assessment of transport, don't transport, or,
you know, what do you do in the meantime is made by those on-site?
MR. MORIMOTO: Correct. The ground ambulance that responds, say to a Hana call or
Molokai or Lanai, if they determine that time is of the essence and the patient
needs to go by helicopter rather than taking 'em, taking the patient to respective
facility on their island. . .which they're closest to, they can elevate...they can
activate the helicopter. The helicopter has predetermined landing areas within
each district or their respective airports to then meet up with the ground
helicopter [sic], have the patient transported to Maui Memorial or Queen's. You
know, we've also gone to Tripler on Oahu and Kaiser Moanalua on Oahu. We
have permission to land in Kuakini as they have the decompression chamber
there; however, we have not transported a patient there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know we hear a lot in the medical profession about
the golden hour. So you generally with a 45 minute transport time from point to
point make that?
MR. MORIMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: With time to spare most of the time.
MR. MORIMOTO: I mean...conect. And there'll even be, like I say, once the helipad is
up at Maui Memorial, we'll be, you know, within that period of time. I mean time
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is of the essence. We say time is tissue, and we have had successful transports of
patients, like I say, with neurological deficits at the scene that were corrected and
improved upon by the stroke team at Maui Memorial. So, you know, we know
those patients are out there today.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have one more question and then I'll give it up. What is
the advantage between what happens on a fixed wing transport and the helicopter?
What are the advantages?
MR. MORIMOTO: I think the advantage is clearly, for scene calls, is that a helicopter
can land right there at the scene. We've landed in Kaupo, Kipahulu, right on
H-Piilani in Kaanapali. Obviously a fixed wing, you would have to transport the
patient to an airport for that to happen. So I think time, you know, the fact that
the helicopter can land... so long as there's an area safe and clear enough to land,
we can land. And so I think that's the biggest difference.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So your being able to be there promptly on the scene is
really the, the bottom line here. You give that advantage to somebody's life.
MR. MORIMOTO: You know, absolutely. And, and in times of, you know, tsunamis
and disasters and stuff, I mean, immediately if there's a patient that needs to come
over an area that's full of debris and we can't get through by the road, the
helicopter can immediately fly to West Maui, load that patient and bring them
over on this side. I mean that's, you know, no fixed wing can be faster than that
for sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Good morning,
Mr. Morimoto.
MR. MORIMOTO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And thank you for your very compelling testimony.
You know, you see all the stuff right up and close; whereas, you know, we don't,
so we certainly value what, what you see. The...over time have the calls or
requests for services, have they increased in the remote areas, the rural areas?
MR. MORIMOTO: The scene calls has increased. The transfers for medical facilities,
namely at Maui Memorial, has decreased. And I believe strongly that's because
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now there's two fixed wing carriers. So our scene calls are, are, you know, pretty
much more than our transfers of late.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And I guess as we look at these remotes areas
as you went over it in your opening testimony, as these remote rural areas start to
grow, there's more people living in Hana, the Molokai, Lanai. Would you agree
that the probability of an incident increases as more people come into these areas?
MR. MORIMOTO: Absolutely, you know, absolutely. You know and the other thing if
I can throw in there, you know, once the helipad is up at Maui Memorial, you
know, hopefully the Molokai, you know, General and, and Lanai and those
facilities will see more so how critically they can get patients off the island and to
Maui Memorial directly on campus with their helipad. So I'm thinking we may
even be getting more calls because of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And there's. . .probably no chance these
facilities out in those areas are going to get any major upgrades -MR. MORIMOTO: . . . (laughter). . . Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --that's for sure with the State's economy.
MR. MORIMOTO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Oh, you popular guy this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MORIMOTO: Hoo! Sweating . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We making up for yesterday. Member Medeiros, followed by
Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, for this second opportunity
just to follow up on some questions. What, what is the relationship between the
air ambulance and the County's Fire Department's ambulance? Because the Fire
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Department ambulance which is contracted by the County can respond fairly
quickly. Do they have the capability of transport?
MR. MORIMOTO: The Maui County Fire Department helicopter is a Hughes 500,
relatively small. We primarily use them as far as EMS. We use them to rescue a
patient that we cannot access, say, from a cliff to the topside, to the roadside so
that we can have access then by, by ambulance. That is the major role for that
helicopter as well as, you know, fire drops, et cetera. My understanding is that
that helicopter would not be able to have a patient supine unless they were, you
know, hauled underneath the helicopter. So I think that's the major difference.
That helicopter is not configured to be a medical transport helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and so a response to say East Maui, to
Kaupo would be from Kahului Airport or from another airport as far as
. . .(inaudible). . .
MR. MORIMOTO: The helicopter is stationed at Kahului Airport.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right. So they would respond from
there?
MR. MORIMOTO: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Is, is there an advantage of the Fire
Department helicopter responding quicker with at least an assessment team? So
that--because like what happened in Keanae, the assessment couldn't be done
until the Hana ambulance got there, which was 45 minutes later. So if the Fire
helicopter can get there quicker with an assessment team, would that help the air
ambulance in being dispatched because the assessment has been made?
MR. MORIMOTO: Absolutely. In fact, I can give you a story of the second case in
2004, it was a shark bite on Molokai and the patient was in a remote area. So it
was the County Fire Department's helicopter who rescued this patient, brought
the patient to an open, clear landing area only to then leave that area so that our
medical helicopter could come in, pick up the patient, and bring them to Maui
Memorial. So absolutely, we work in conjunction. And that's just one story, but
there's been other rescue stories where we depend on the Fire Department's
helicopter to bring the patient so that our helicopter can then do the transport.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for sharing that, because that's
important to us as we deliberate on this. Finally, in the Act 2 agreement between
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the State and the County, the cost or the amount the County paid, was that
computed by a projected number of responses?
MR. MORIMOTO: I believe at that time it was a projection of 110 or so per year, and
that was just, you know, that was just a swag based on, you know, some of the
data from, from fixed wing transports, 'cause of course we never did this before.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MORIMOTO: So scene transports in conjunction with some inter-facility transfers,
that number I believe did come up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. I have more questions, but I
won't go on. But I certainly would, would like to work with your group to see if
we can reduce the cost in some kind of different arrangement so that we can
maintain the service.
MR. MORIMOTO: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Chairman, I don't know if he is the right person,
but I'll ask the question and maybe we, we'd have to do some research. You said
the State now has a contract with you.
MR. MORIMOTO: We have an EMS contract with the State that calls for providing
helicopter EMS service.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. MORIMOTO: So we subcontract the helicopter piece to Pacific Helicopters.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Do you bid that out? Is that -MR. MORIMOTO: Yes, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --the State that does that and you bid it out?
MR. MORIMOTO: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So that's already been done. And that contract
is for how long?
MR. MORIMOTO: Actually, we have a year and a half left on our current contract.
The, the contract we're in now was for four years with two one-year tails.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, one quick question, please.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry . . . (laughter). . . you know. Mr. Moromoto,
Morimoto, I should say, can we get one thing clear, because I don't want the
public to get confused between what the Fire Department helicopter's capabilities
and your capabilities are. The Fire helicopter basically extracts and brings to or
tries to stabilize, whatever else needs to be...and then brings to an area for which
an ambulance--whether air ambulance, regular ambulance, or some kind of
medical team--is available to take care, treat, stabilize, and then move to whatever
facility. Am I correct in saying that?
MR. MORIMOTO: That is correct, sir. There are many more calls where the helicopter
from the Fire Department is just involved in extrication and rescue to roadside.
They may not necessarily be medical helicopter cases. They may just be
transported by ground.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then, and, and I thank you. What I'm trying to
get is the helicopter itself is not equipped with the various equipment that your
helicopter has for stabilization, for air travel. Because again as you stated earlier
that when you travel via air, the body reacts differently and there needs to be
experts and, and equipment to take care of that individual. If we did use that, you
know, and, and what we're saying that if you use that to transport somebody to
the hospital, they would have to kind of sit outside of the helicopter itself. Am I
correct?
MR. MORIMOTO: That's my understanding of the Hughes 500. Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so, so just so that we don't confuse the
situation. The Fire Department helicopter is really for extraction and delivery.
You folks are really to stabilize and treat, and then deliver to the proper facility
wherever it may...whether it's Maui Memorial, Kaiser, wherever it might be from
the specific spot directly to the medical facility.
MR. MORIMOTO: Correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just so that we get that straight, Mr. Chair,
and, you know, 'cause the public might get confused in what we're trying to
accomplish here. But I agree with Mr. Medeiros, we gotta try do anything we can
to, to save the service and, and enhance the service if we can. So thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One more time, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I, I'm gonna degurgitate [sic] on this question,
but I'm going to have to ask it anyway. And it may not be for you,
Mr. Morimoto. This is just thinking aloud, okay. The State bid out this contract.
I want to know how the hell the County got involved in having to fund this,
Mr. Chairman. Yeah? Because if the State bid it out, how did the County all of a
sudden assume some money in this? This is a State responsibility. I'm not saying
that we shouldn't do it. I'm just saying that so many times the State is just
shoving stuff down our throats.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I think-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and I want to know that question.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So anyway, not, not for you, but my concern for-CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll get that information for you, Mr. Nishiki. I think it was
back from the previous Administration when they first started, maybe six years
ago. So yeah that was...at that time, there was an agreement between the County,
the State in regards to providing this service here on Maui. So it's about six years
ago.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Six years?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Morimoto.
MR. MORIMOTO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And thank you for answering -MR. MORIMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --all those questions.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe the rest of the testifiers not going get questions. So-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --at this time I'd like to call the next testifier, Dr. John Mills.
MR. MILLS: Good morning, Councilmen and Councilwomen. My name is
Dr. John Mills. I've been an emergency physician here on Maui for over
30 years. And I'm here to support continuing funding of the Maui MedEvac
helicopter. Let me recall...let me begin by recalling a few cases that we've seen
over the years. Excuse me. Number one is a 50-year-old male who presented to
the emergency room at 5:30 in the morning with severe chest pain. There was a
tearing quality and was associated with radiations to his back and to his neck, and
he was very short of breath. His vital signs were, showed a sky-high blood
pressure of around 220 over 130 and a racing of heart of about 120. Through
quick action of our ER team, we reduced his pain and his blood pressure through
W medications. Then after a quick CAT scan, we made the diagnosis of a
dissecting aortic aneurysm. Stabilized for now, this gentleman needs a cardiac
surgeon on Oahu. What happens next? Okay. Case number two was a healthy,
15-year-old boy who surfaced from a scuba diving lesson in Kaanapali and
immediately had a seizure and became unconscious. Paramedics arrived at the
scene within minutes, they secured his airway, stopped his seizures with IV
medications, and got a history that he'd had a rapid ascent from the bottom after
he'd run out of air. They correctly assumed that he had suffered an acute air
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embolism to his brain. What happens next? Case number three is a 55-year-old,
Hawaiian male who presents to Hana Medical Clinic with a 30-minute history of
right-sided paralysis and slurred speech. He has a history of high blood pressure
and diabetes. Paramedics suspect an acute CVA or acute stroke. What happens
next? Well, what happens next is that these patients need rapid transport to a
definitive medical facility where proper medical intervention can occur. And
these are all cases where survival is measured in a matter of minutes. Now in
rural areas, in rural areas on the mainland, the standard of the care is often rapid
transport via medical helicopter. Hawaii is an island State, we have four islands
in the County of Maui and many emo e Hawaiian communities, and we ee o
provide similar...a similar standard of care for them. Maui Memorial Medical
Center has recently received funding and has broken ground on a new
state-of-the-art helipad. This will allow not only rooftop-to-rooftop transfers from
our facilities to facilities on Oahu, but also will receive air transport from these
emo e Hawaiian communities.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes
MR. MILLS: Transport can...this type of transport could otherwise take hours and may
cost a life; furthermore, Maui Memorial Hospital has a state...state-of-the-art
stroke treatment team poised to intervene in catastrophic cerebral vascular events
i the patient presents within the three-hour window. In these...in these, in these
cases time is brain tissue. Within, within the year, plans were also in the works
for a cardiovascular intervention with coronary revascularization, balloon
angioplasty and stenting in cases of acute coronary thrombosis. Time, in this
instance, is heart tissue. In order for health care in Maui County to move forward
and offer start-of-the-art treatment, a rapid transport systems is absolutely
necessary. The MedEvac helicopter is an integral part in making this happen.
With the above pieces in place, the following would happen. Case number one...
MR. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. MILLS: Thank you . . . (laughter). . . The 50-year-old male with the dissecting
aneurysm, the aortic aneurysm is flown immediately rooftop to the rooftop of
Queen's Medical Center where he's taken to the operating room and his aorta is
repaired. Case number two, the 15-year-old boy with air embolism is transported
i ec y to Kuakini Medical Center where he undergoes emergency recompression
in a multi-person hyperbaric oxygen chamber and makes a full recovery. Case
number three, the 55-year-old, Hawaiian male is flown directly from Hana to
Maui Memorial Hospital and is brought to the cath lab where the clotted artery in
his brain is dissolved, and he regains full use of the right side of his face and his
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speech. These are all things that are possible because of rapid helicopter
transport.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MILLS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Dr. Mills at this time?
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Dr. Mills,
and thank you for being here.
MR. MILLS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Now you used to live in Hana, right?
MR. MILLS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So you're familiar with the remoteness of
Hana and Nahiku where you used to live.
MR. MILLS: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so...and you have given us an example of a
person being transported from Hana to the hospital and the urgency of it.
MR. MILLS: That's correct. That's...that one particular case is a scenario, it's not
something that happened. But that was what...that's sort of our planning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. So what would...what do you think
would be the impact without this service for such remote areas such Hana,
Molokai, Lanai, and other remote communities?
MR. MILLS: Well, I think that these people are going to suffer irreparable brain damage
or irreparable heart damage which could then be...result in long-term care,
long-term disability through heart failure, those type of things. I mean literally
time, time is of an essence. And we talk about the golden hour in trauma--in, in
heart cardiac care it's four hours before revascularization is not, no longer
effective. And then as far as the brain is concerned, we have a three-hour
window, but the closer we can get to, you know, the more we can pare that down
the better chances of patients making recoveries.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and with the construction of the helipad at the
hospital, that even increases the, you know, the advantage of getting the patient
directly to the hospital--where now they land at the War Memorial Complex
athletic fields and then transport the patient up to the hospital by ambulance. So
would you agree that would be a great advantage to just go directly to the
hospital?
MR. MILLS: Absolutely. It's, it's a direct, direct line to our ER, into our cath labs and
into our operating rooms. It's kind of like if . . . (laughter). . . it's kind of like if
you were going to make a plane trip to the mainland, say if you were going to go
Las Vegas. If you went through Oahu, then L.A., and then to your Vegas, your
luck might have run out by the time you got there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, thank . . .(Laughter). . . thank you for that
. . . (Laughter). . . All right, Dr. Mills, thank you for being here this morning. I
know you...you're on a very busy schedule, and thank for the long years of
emergency work at the ER.
MR. MILLS: It's my pleasure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That was a good analogy.
ALL: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Dr. Mills? Seeing none,
thank you again for being here.
MR. MILLS: You're welcome. You know, and I'd also like to give...say one other
thing, is that, you know, Maui Memorial Hospital is our...Maui is our home.
Maui Memorial Medical Center is our house, and we have to take care of our own
kuleana and our own house. And I'd also like to say, give my thanks to our
present administrator, Wes Lo. Not since the days of Wally Yanagi or
Jerry Walker have we've seen an administrator who really cares about our
community, about taking care of our house--is this man back here Wes Lo. So I'd
like to just put a little extra . . . (inaudible). . . this is-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Doctor.
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MR. MILLS: Put that in the record.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That was a good introduction for the next testifier -ALL: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Lo.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, Members, Mr. Lo used to work for the County.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yea!
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Lo approached the podium.

MR. LO: . . . Mr. Chair and Council Members, Wesley Lo, administrator for Maui
Memorial Medical Center. I think you guys heard quite a bit already, I'll try to
keep this comments fairly short. Couple things I wanted to point out is over the
last five or six years, probably. . .one of the most talked about topics has been
health care. You guys all remember South Maui, West Maui, Federal health care
reform, et cetera, and the biggest issue that I heard over those years is lack of
access to definitive care. People talk about the golden hour, you know, trauma,
et cetera, and right now we are using the helicopter for the trauma and the strokes
right now. But I think what we've been trying to do strategically for Maui
Memorial is to actually provide definitive care for the...all the other services on
this island. We...yeah, the residents of Maui County deserve this, as you know,
and a lot of the times we are flying off island right now. One of the, one of the
things that is going to be really major that's going to be happening is...again we
provide trauma services and we're trying to expand that and we provide stroke
services. One of the leading killers is heart disease. We are in the midst of
starting a heart program. We actually do open heart surgery now on Maui, the
first neighbor island hospital to do that, and I would say within the next six
months we will be providing angioplasty here at Maui...on Maui. Now the
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significance of that is right now in 2009, 241 transports off island from fixed wing
were sent to Oahu hospitals for heart angioplasty, et cetera. Once we provide this
on Maui Memorial, those 241 people can get treatment at Maui Memorial, but the
problem is, is that time is muscle, as Dr. Mills has said and Mr. Morimoto said.
So what's going to happen actually is that 90-minute door to balloon time or event
to balloon time is going to be critical 'cause we can now provide the services at
Maui Memorial. So what will happen is it kind of converse about only servicing
the rural areas, you're going to start seeing the urban areas get more services, and
you're going to see the helicopter flying a lot more. Because when we can
identify those heart diseases or the chest pains, et cetera, with what they call ST
elevations--which we've already provided some equipment into the ambulances
on there--that critical time to get them to the cath lab is going to make this
helicopter be used incredible amounts of times and provide the standard of care
that is not provided on Maui County right now. Right now, what happens is they
come to the hospital, they get thrombolytics, and they're shipped to Honolulu.
It's a whole different type of treatment. The standard of care is going to be
angioplasty here, and with the helipad, the heart surgery, the new ICU, we're just
about there to really change the face of health care on this island right now, I
think. And, and with that we're also going to start expanding trauma care,
et cetera. So, you know, this is the, probably the best way to provide this care to
the outlying counties, islands of Maui County. And just, just a real last comment,
strategically. . .health care, I think, is a very strong economic driver. As we start
building these services, et cetera, we're going to start drawing concentric circles
around the eastern half of the State. We hope to provide these types of service to
the Big Island also which does not have open heart surgery or angioplasty, and it
could be a real economic boom as an indirect benefit. Thank you for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Lo. Chair is going to recognize Mr. Molina,
and then Mr. Victorino . . . (inaudible). . . Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Mr. Lo.
Good to see you again, and thank you for giving us that perspective on the
additional services that you're looking at here on...at our hospital or Medical
Center. So just so I can get a clear understanding, so with the open heart services
and angioplasty, so the helicopters now would be, instead of taking those patients
to Honolulu, they can do it right here. Is there...so maybe it's a stupid question,
but it'll be cheaper in terms of cost for the patients as well now that they can go to
Maui instead of Honolulu?
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MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Council Member, okay, there's going to be a couple different facets
to that. I would say to the patient and the insurance and the cost to health care,
it's going to be tremendously cheaper. I mean I'm going to guess here, and I
think one of the speakers will follow me on the cost of fixed wing transport that's
provided by the two providers now. I think the bills come in around 20...about
20,000 or so. Some if it is covered by insurance, but not all of it is covered by
insurance to take a fixed wing to Honolulu. I think on the helicopter just coming
to Maui Memorial it's about $3,000-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wow.
MR. LO: --and it may be insurance, et cetera. So I mean to the patient it's a huge saving
expense. From the...that's from the cost now of care, again to the whole health
system, is...let's just take a stroke, I think it's easier to look at a stroke-- is if we
don't get that person to definitive care in the three-hour time limit that Dr. Mills
talked about and resolve that stroke, the cost to the system is going to be, you're
going to have to have somebody that potentially disabilitating [sic] injuries that
will be in a hospital or in a care home for a long, long time, costing the system
lots of money. So there's huge amounts of saving there. So . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. LO: . . . that, that's a huge, huge savings to that. Now from...I think from Maui
Memorial and everything, it certainly is just that, you know it, for us is the longer
they stay in the hospital the more is costs the State, the more it costs everybody to
pay for that. That's why your insurance goes up, et cetera. So it certainly is
going to be a huge cost saving on a multi-faceted basis.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, thank you very much for sharing that perspective
as well. Although, you can't put a price on -MR. LO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --on, you know, health care, but at least it's...gives
people more peace of mind knowing that if they get afflicted with that their
finances won't be as impacted as if we were without helicopter services. Thank
you, Mr. Lo. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. And thank you, Wes, for all
what you've done and the improvements that you've made to our Maui Medical
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Center. I mean I think it's very apparent, and I thank you very much for that on
behalf of all the people, especially our family who's had, you know, times to
have...we've had to use it, yeah. All these services, I think, are great, but I think
there's an aspect--and you can correct me if I'm wrong. The other aspect of this
is the family being a part of and being there. When you go off island, it is so
expensive to them to go down there to fly, to house. I mean if you got family,
fine. If you're not, you're in a hotel or something. What would you estimate, you
know, and I know you do enough of this stuff, for example if something happened
to me and I had to go down and my wife had to come and, you know, stay there
for a week, what would the extra cost be for a family like that? And that's only
one person now, you're not talking the entire family.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Council Member, I would say it's easily going to run you probably,
you know, thousands of dollars that's not paid for by insurance just in lodging,
airfare. I think it's going to be easily that. And again I'm going to just digress a
little bit. Part of the problem is, is when you don't get the definitive care. . .those
one weeks are going to turn into months, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. LO: Whereas, definitive care--for those of you who have ever got a chance to see
our cath lab on a stroke--it's kind of, kind of crazy. I mean we're talking about
they walk out the next day, and the difference between being debilitated for their
whole life. So it's hard also to get people, you know, back, and, and people I
think generally heal better at home, next to family and friends, et cetera. I think
it's pretty much scientifically proven in a lot of cases. So there's certainly more
than just the dollar cost, too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The other question is, you know, for this type of
services--and you were mentioning that the helicopter costs about $3,000,
whereas, a fixed wing is about $20,000. At this time, does the patient who is
transported--well, I guess if it's emergency--is there any expense directly
associated to the patient's medical?
MR. LO: Yes. I think, well...I'm sorry?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (SPOKE FROM THE AUDIENCE): . . . (Inaudible).. .
MR. LO: Yeah. I think...I was going to say is that it's typically a patient will be
billed... if it's paid for insurance on a fixed transport... and don't get me wrong-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. LO: --fixed wing is an important thing-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. LO: --but it's for inter-facility transport. But fixed wing is, usually a bill will come
in about $4,000 after insurance pays.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. LO: So and, and there is...and sorry, if I may?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. LO: There is actually an added cost, is, when you...when the insurance pays for
that. . .don't be fooled, it's not the insurance pays for it, we pay for it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. LO: Ultimately, yeah. 'Cause it goes into the insurance, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. And I've been, you know, I've
been in the insurance industry-MR. LO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for the last 27 years-MR. LO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --so I'm keenly aware of what you're saying. You
know that's not...that wasn't the question.
MR. LO: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Actually the question was does the helicopter, not
the fixed wing-MR. LO: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is there any charge associated to the helicopter's-
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MR. LO: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --transportation? That was my question. And I
apologize if we, we . . . (laughter). . . we got confused on that one, Mr. Chair.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, I believe it's fairly nominal. I'm not sure of the billing on
the...may, maybe $20. What?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (SPOKE FROM THE AUDIENCE): Eighty-twenty split.
MR. LO: Eighty-twenty split, so of the 3,000, you know, would be about $600 as
opposed to let's say 4,000, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And again because you mentioned
the use of the helicopter more, so I wanted to see the economic benefit.
MR. LO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's what I'm trying to point out now, the
economic benefit-MR. LO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --yeah, as well as time and all the other things that
you've said. So I will allow my other colleagues to ask questions. I think I have
a few more, but if they're not asked I'll ask again.
MR. LO: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Mr. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Mr. Victorino . . .(laughter). . .
Member Medeiros, followed by Member Baisa. Oh, at this time the Chair would
like to recognize the presence of Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Lo, good morning.
Thank you for being here. I, I wanted to ask and maybe this was more for the
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contractor of the helicopter service. But do you have patients flown in from
Kalaupapa?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (SPOKE FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes.
MR. LO: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and, and my, my interest in that is
certainly we want to provide service to the patients and people and residents of
Kalaupapa. But I know that Kalaupapa is, is the County of Kalawao that comes
under the State Department of Health. So I'm wondering why the State wouldn't
contribute more to this service, because it does involve Kalaupapa, and the State
is certainly responsible for Kalaupapa.
MR. LO: Yeah, uh. . .Mr. Chair, I'm sorry. I, I'm not -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Lo?
MR. LO: --able to answer.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. Thank you for that. What is the
projected completion date of your helipad?
MR. LO: Our initial estimate is it'll be completed by October of this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. And at that time. . .service can...the
helicopter service can go directly to the hospital?
MR. LO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Lo.
MR. LO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you very much,
Mr. Lo, for being here. It must feel like déjà vu to be here with us during budget.
Thank you for all the good work you're doing at Maui Memorial. They certainly,
I'm sure, appreciate having an administrator like you. But, you know, for me this
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whole discussion is not theoretical. I've been the patient that needed the
transport, and the proof is in the pudding, I'm here. I probably wouldn't have
been if that emergency service wasn't available for me. I used fixed wing, but,
you know, the helicopter was not available at that time. And I experienced the
cost of being in Oahu with my family around me having to stay in a hotel for six
weeks, and it was very, very expensive. And worse than expense was not having
the family support and the all the anxiety of the people on Maui wondering, you
know, how are things going and they can't really see you. So I really appreciate
what you're trying to do to bring these services to home. Let me ask you this, if
we did not have this helicopter service available, would it financially jeopardize
your cardiac plans?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Council Member, I, I certainly think it could have an impact on that,
it's hard to say. I, I think that the ground ambulance service does the best its can,
best it can. The problem is for some of these critical services, if you don't have
critical mass, there is the financial viability part, but there's also you shouldn't
provide the service unless you can do a good service. You need to have numbers,
it's all about repetition in health care, the more you do it the better you become at
it. Anecdote is you don't want a heart surgeon doing surgery that does one heart
every ten years. You want one that does, you know, many hearts a year. So the,
the problem without the helicopter is that you, we probably won't be doing as
many angioplasties because they'll be out of the time window and we'll be
treating them with less than standard of care. So conceivably you could have less
numbers here. And then with less numbers to keep highly skilled individuals
here, you know, there's a potential for a spiral down on that effect. So I, I would
say it's critical. I would be...it would be hard to estimate how that would work,
because there is quite a lot of heart disease here, and, you know, I don't think
we're even seeing a quarter of the heart disease here right now in, in this County,
but it certainly would have an impact.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: While we've been pretty focused on the cardiac services,
I'm also very aware that we have a whole bunch of other, you know, conditions
that require immediate evacuation. How...does the neonatal situation fall into
this service also?
MR. LO: I think the neonatal would be more inclined to the fixed wing, and, you know,
we, again we talk about repetitions. Kapiolani Medical Center is the center of
excellence for neonatal care right now because they do so many of them. And so
a lot of the neonatal incidences, we actually get what we call the Kap team or
Kapiolani team come over on the fixed wing and transfer that way. So neonatal
and inter-facility transport, fixed wing certainly is a needed service. Helicopter
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doesn't do everything that fixed wing does, but fixed wing doesn't do a lot that a
scene trauma service would do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So aside from cardiac, is it basically orthopedic or trauma
or...
MR. LO: I would, I would say that the...probably the key areas are going to be some of
the leading killers. It's going to be stroke where there's, definitive care is needed
in a certain amount of time; trauma which I would include general surgery,
orthopedics, et cetera; and, and then the hearts are going to be the biggest, the
biggest things that are impacted by the scene trauma thing. And it's important to
note that that 15-minute gain by having the helicopter land on the campus is going
to expand the use of this anyway, because the difference between half an hour and
45 minutes could mean difference of care, the type of care you're going to
administer as well as, you know, the standard of care.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it looks like we've got our work cut out to find
some money. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Lo at this
time? Seeing none, thank you, Wes, for being here. The last testifier that signed
up prior to the meeting is David Russell.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Russell approached the podium.

MR. RUSSELL: . . . Hello, Mr. Chair and Members of the Council. My name is
David Russell. I'm Director of Cardiovascular Services. . .which also includes
our State, stroke center, and I work with Department of Health for a Statewide
stroke system of care taskforce as well. And I'm really glad to be the last person
to testify because it looks like a lot of the tough stuff already went before. So I, I
do want to just reiterate a couple of things, and of course it's an importance on the
need for the helicopter service.
. . . Specifically, the, the historical needs have been proven and we have some
stories. I have a great story about a patient that was a phenomenal story of a save
for a stroke patient from Lanai, scene call. They couldn't emulate or do better
than this anywhere on the mainland--to get a patient into the cath lab, get her
brain opened up. From the time that she called the ambulance to starting to
recover in the cath lab was 71 minutes. That's phenomenal. And these kind of
saves save the system tremendous long-term costs. We...what we've shown
historically is that the radius of effectiveness really includes Hana, it includes
Lanai and Molokai, and I have some numbers about, about that. But as Mr. Lo
said, some of the events that we're planning for 2010--or that are in process for
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2010, not just planned, but they're going to happen--are tremendously going to
affect the, the need and the utilization of this service. Improved comprehensive
cardiac care is going to be complete in 2010. And as Mr. Lo said, right now
40 percent of all of our transports out of the hospital are cardiac, 30 percent of all
transports into our emergency department are cardiac. And with this increased
system of care, our vigilance and our population is going to grow significantly.
Perhaps a Q&A session, I could help define exactly why the population is going
to go from a 20 percent to a 80 percent of all patients that are cardiac. And
it's...so it's rapidly going to also increase the need of...the number of patients,
let's say, in Hana, in Molokai or Lanai that need the helicopter transport. Right
now, they're waiting for the fixed wing. Yeah, they have to go to Oahu. But
when we have the services and the time window here, those 52 patients that are
doing a fixed wing from Molokai last year, 40 percent of them need a helicopter
transport now to Maui Memorial--so increasing the, the volume that we'll have.
Also the helipad, the construction of the helipad is going to shorten the response
radius, and the response radius system now, of course, includes those outer
islands and Hana. But with a shortened response radius and taking off that 15
minutes at the end of the transport chunk will shorten the radius for Maui
Memorial to include the Keanae Peninsula, to include Lahaina, West Maui, and
areas of Upcountry. Right now 26.5 percent of all the emergency transports that
are provided to Maui Memorial or provided out from Maui Memorial to Oahu are
residents of those areas. Now I didn't say "visitors" because that's another 16.7
in a down year. Typically, 20 percent of all of our transports are visitors to the
island of Maui, and predominantly those are patients in West Maui. Now again
those with the shortened response radius suddenly our volume of potential clients
that can benefit from this, it's vastly improved.
. . . Last year, in 2009, Maui Memorial had an even 600 transports out of Maui
Memorial -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. RUSSELL: --to Oahu for definitive care. I'm sorry. Thank you. Two hundred and
forty one of those, as Mr. Lo mentioned, were cardiac. Eliminate those, but
unfortunately increase the number coming, it's going to increase our number
needed for helicopter transport. As an aside and just to kind of step back and be
insensitive, stroke and cardiac--the two issues that we've really talked about a
lot--carry with it death and disability as the, as the morbidity. Death is costly,
that's certainly apparent, but sometimes disability is even more costly. And
stroke is number one disabling illness. Cardiac is number two disabling illness.
So these two disorders...I also want to replace one thing, the golden hour, that's
passé. Now the new science is that every minute is a percent. So if you...every
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minute actually counts in both cardiac care and stroke care. So in summary, I
think our volume -MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. RUSSELL: --is necessary to increase, yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. RUSSELL: Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you rushed at the end, but thank you.
MR. RUSSELL: Yeah. Yeah. So I zipped.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier at this time?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again, Mr. Russell, for being here.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, you were smart to sign up last.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there anyone out in the Chambers that want to provide public
testimony at this time that haven't signed up?
. . . Seeing none coming forward...you want to testify?
. . . Okay. We do have one more testifier. Sir, and if you can do your testimony,
and then soon as you're done, sign up with the. . .Executive Assistant or Secretary
out there.
MR. BAILEY: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. My name is Speedy Bailey, and I'm the
General Manager with American Medical Response. And we manage the, the
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ambulance and the helicopter system on County of Maui, also the County of
Kauai, and we do services throughout the State. Honolulu, the Big Island, we
back up. . .the fire department there, and the City and County of Honolulu on
Oahu. I just wanted to sort of answer the question on how the State got involved
with the County in this project. And, and basically the model we used, what,
what is being done on the Big Island. . .probably eight-to-ten years prior to the,
the advent of the service of Maui, so we modeled it after what had worked as a
county, State, and, and partnership on the Big Island where they, the State and the
county match funds. And so it, it worked on the Big Island and has worked, you
know, like I said, continually, you know, eight years prior to Maui's service and
continues to this day. The county match for helicopter services on the Big Island
is roughly 1.3 mil, and the State is putting in. . .somewheres [sic] about a
half-a-million dollars to make the service work on the Big Island. So as a
reference point, I think when we...we're looking at how we're going to build it
for, for Maui County, we went to a model that worked. And it works on the Big
Island and we, we...that's where, that's where the history came from. So, thank
you. I just want to make that point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the testifier? Member Victorino, followed by
Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Bailey, for being
here to at least give us some historical perspective. On the Big Island, I, I noticed
you just mentioned that Big Island's share is 1.3 and the State's share is 500,000.
Seems a little bit dispaired [sic] compared to our share versus the State's share,
but do you have any idea why that big difference in the share...the cost sharing?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. BAILEY: . . . I wish I really had that answer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that, and that...
MR. BAILEY: I can...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's fine.
MR. BAILEY: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I just wanted to know if you had it, and,
and I, I can maybe one day try to figure it out...ascertain from the County of
Maui, I mean County of Hawaii, from some of our colleagues over there. Now
the question I have for you is, is real simple, and. . .putting money aside the, the
thing I taking out of this is from rooftop to rooftop or from scene to, to, to hospital
is truly the, the advantage of having this helicopter service versus any fixed wing
service. Is that...am I correct?
MR. BAILEY: That's absolutely correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And again when we put all the time factors
and lives at risk, you're, you know, what I'm getting out of this is your whole
thing is you can go to scene or you can pick up with any location and take directly
to the hospital. You don't have to land at airports, you don't have to take people
out, extract them, put them in an ambulance, transport them. All that valued time
is, is saved, because you can go from point A to point B directly.
MR. BAILEY: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And that's, that's, that's what
the most important thing in this whole issue is. Thank you. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: The question was answered. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, thank you. Members, any more questions?
Member Medeiros -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here this morning-Mr. BAILEY: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and for being courageous to come up.
. . .(laughter). . .

MR. BAILEY: Happy to be here.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. So in, in the agreement with the State,
under Act 2, I believe which was in 2003 -MR. BAILEY: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --this arrangement or this agreement, you know,
came about. So on... so Act 2 pertains strictly to Maui County or the other
counties also?
MR. BAILEY: I believe that's relative to the legislation that was passed for Maui
County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Maui County. Okay. And with your familiarity
with it, because I want to be sure, you know, that the residents and patients of
Kalaupapa included. . .because it is a different county, it's not Maui County.
MR. BAILEY: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It is County of Kalawao, and which comes under the
State Department of Health. So are they included in this Act and, and this
service?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because we heard that trans...
MR. BAILEY: You know...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Kalaupapa...

. . people have been transported out of

MR. BAILEY: . . . people have been transferred.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. BAILEY: . . . This is a technical point, but I don't believe that when the legislation
was crafted, I don't think Kalawao was mentioned, specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Specifically.
MR. BAILEY: Fixed wings can get into. . .Kalaupapa. Sometimes it's very difficult
when they've had, you know, upgrades in planes and runway is too short.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. BAILEY: So the use for the helicopter is really on an emergent basis, and it has
been utilized that way. You know, obviously if there's a disaster or whatnot, it's
like, kind of like all bets are off and we do the...so we have been contacted when
the fixed wing providers cannot get into Kalaupapa. And we have gone sort of de
facto as a, as a backup to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. BAILEY: But it is...I think you're correct in saying that it wasn't initially. . .set up,
and it wasn't mentioned in the bill specifically to do that county. It was Maui
County, specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank...
MR. BAILEY: So when we do go there, it's sort of . .take care of your neighbors kind
of thing, help out when other people can't get there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And then finally. . .for Maui
County, are your aircraft, I mean, meaning the helicopters stationed on the
different islands or they all respond from Kahului, Maui?
MR. BAILEY: We're currently stationed at...we have one aircraft and it's at Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So from Kahului they would respond to
Molokai, Lanai, or any part of the island of Maui?
MR. BAILEY: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your testimony, and for the
information.
MR. BAILEY: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Bailey, and
thank you for sharing that insight as well with regards to your equipment. And I
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can only guess maybe the Big Island's commitment is more, because it seems like
that island is more susceptible to natural disasters as well, and you have
a...maybe a larger population base. And I know the former mayor was the head
of Civil Defense, so I'm sure he put in a lot of helicopter . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. BAILEY: Well, you know, they do have a higher fatality rate and incident than
Maui County. So you guys can maybe pat yourself on the back for some, you
know, work well done. But we know that long stretches of road, you know, a
non-divided highway--but they do have a higher rate of incidents. Their
helicopter is not equipped to go over water though, so it's, it's function is really
limited to servicing patients on the Big Island. So patients that need to leave the
Big Island have to be...have to go by fixed wing or could go by the use of a
twin-engine helicopter, which we provide. And I think Mr. Lo talked about
expanding services to the north-end of the Big Island.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, and if I could stay on the same lines? So
following Member Medeiros' question with regards to your equipment, and I
know we heard from Mr. Morimoto mentioning, you know, as time goes by,
increased costs and so forth. Your helicopters are basically how old, and are you
looking at upgrades in the near...how soon are you looking at upgrading your
equipment in the near future? And I ask that because for future Councils, we're
going to have to look at, you know, an increased investment in this.
MR. BAILEY: Thank you. Very good question. In fact. . .we had. . .gone back to the
Legislature and secured funds for a replacement helicopter . . .
. . . it's to the tune of about 675,000, very close to what the County matches. We,
we, we did a lot of shopping for helicopters, probably in a bad time. . .for buying
a helicopter because of the, the Afghanistan campaign and Iraq campaign. . .there
was a long waiting line for equipment and very expensive. It was our
professional opinion that the airframe that we currently had had hundreds of hours
of viable service left on it, and in trying to be as cost-efficient and sensitive to, to
spending taxpayer dollars on anything, we in conjunction with the Department of
Health said, you know, this money can be, can be...go back into the General Fund
for uses for other services. So Maui County has an airframe that, that has many
hours of useful service, and we believe in--and I think you can, you can get this
validated from the Department of Health--that this program is one of the most
cost-efficient helicopter services in the State, and, and you're getting the biggest
bang for your buck, basically.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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MR. BAILEY: And we're very proud of that, and we want to keep those costs. . .down
as much as we can.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Just a comment.
I remember. . .six, seven years ago when this issue came up that we were looking
for a helicopter that could go over water rather than only land. So I'm, I'm glad
we did that. So thank you again for...
MR. BAILEY: With four islands it's, it's a necessity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Yep. Sir, if you could sign up with our
Secretary that's out in the door . . . (inaudible)-MR. BAILEY: I'd be happy to. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --we'd appreciate that. Thank you. Members. . .that's the last
testifier that we have this morning. If there's no objections, the Chair would like
to close public testimony at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, this morning we have...or today we have three
departments that we're going to review in regards to their Fiscal Year 2011
Budget. The first.. .
. . . the first review this morning will be the Civil Defense Agency. . .followed by
the Department of Personnel Services, and then the Transportation Department.
So, Members, if you can turn to Page 2 on your proposed bill, on your Program
Budget, Page 3-1, and your location in the Budget Details is on page, starting on
Page 1-1. The request from the Department is $509,133. Just for your
information, there are two vacant positions, CD-0004 and CD-005 [sic]. At this
time, the Chair would like to call on Mr. Pablo, if you have any opening
comments.
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MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. And good morning, Members of the Budget
Finance Committee. I just have a few comments before Civil Defense
Administrator Gen Iinuma goes over the budget for the Civil Defense Agency.
. . . The Civil Defense Agency's budget for 2011 is, is 509,000. It's...there's an
increase primarily in the, in the positions. The Salary and Wages have gone up
69,000. With regard to the Operations, they're at the same level as
Fiscal Year '10, and actually it's at a lower level than Fiscal Year '09. There's no
equipment being requested or being placed in this year's budget for the Civil
Defense Agency. I'd like to point out that on the Salaries and Wages, I reviewed
it this morning and have brought down some changes to you. The dollar amount,
the bottom line doesn't change. It's just that the...there was a correction made in
the CD Staff Specialist. We took 50 percent funding on one position, and it was
originally shown on the incorrect position. So you have a new Page 1-2 which
shows that in the Budget Details. That's all I have for now, Chair Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Iinuma, you have any opening comments that
you'd like to make?
MR. IINUMA: . . . Thank you, Chairman Pontanilla, Members of the Council. Good
morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Morning.

MR. IINUMA: It's a extremely difficult year, certainly over the last several years and
the years to come in terms of economically. Civil Defense is one of the programs
in...with our partners in public safety that comes before you. We had a very
difficult task of taking on the issues before us, and certainly man-made and
natural disasters are never predictable. And as a result, our, our budget reflects a
very, very modest proposal before you.
. . . I would just put it before you to review that and stand to answer any
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, Members, we'll go from A Account first,
and then B, and then C. So we'll go to the A Account that begins on
Page 1-1 [sic], the Administration. Mr. Victorino, you have any questions
regarding Administration area?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think the only question I had for Mr. Iinuma is I
guess, Mr. Iinuma, you're adding a. . .Civil Defense Technician I, which I guess
has been vacant in 2010. Or is that just a new position entirely?
MR. IINUMA: The Civil Defense Technician position actually is one of the. . .one of the
senior positions. While it, it showed to be vacant, I really had that position filled.
I, I used cost savings from other positions and, and budget to bring that person
aboard because originally that position served not only as a technician but also
clerical.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. IINUMA: Over the, over the last several years, since the beginning of my tenure,
I've increased the position load for Civil Defense to. . .equate to the kind of
services that we're, we're asked to provide. And. . .now I have a Secretary and an
Account Clerk position to take on some of the clerical loads, where now the Civil
Defense Technician position is specifically for alert notification, communications,
and warning services. So long answer, but the position has been filled and has
always been filled. I just tried to juggle with budget to ensure that we could fund
that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. IINUMA: --critical need.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just...and because, you know, and again it
showed zero in 2010. That's why the question was brought. My other question is
as far as you know, your positions are non-union, right? Or are they union?
MR. IINUMA: They're all union.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All union. Okay, so-MR. IINUMA: Except for, except for the Administrator's position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so as far as furloughs and all that you,
you...that's all to be determined a little bit later by, by that aspect. I just wanted
that question answered. And, and finally I guess the, the premium pay again, in
your case you cannot never and. . .predict when a emergency is going to occur,
whether it's on a Monday, a Saturday, or whatever day, right?
MR. IINUMA: Yes. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so...and then let me say that, you know, this
past couple emergencies, you guys have done a yeoman's job. There are some
concerns, and I'll bring that at a later date. But I, I've been pleased, and the
overall reaction and people have been very positive. So I want to thank you for
the efforts you guys have, because it's not been easy especially the last couple of
disasters or impending disasters, I should say. We've been fortunate. The Lord
has blessed us with no major destruction or loss of life. But I think you guys have
been an integral part along with the other emergency services. So I want to thank
you, Mr. Iinuma, and your staff for your hard work.
MR. IINUMA: Thank you for those comments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Good morning,
Mr. Iinuma. Thank you for being here this morning. And I, I too would like to
say, you know, thank you for the response to the latest emergency that we had. I
just wanted to ask, and I think I've spoken to you before. . .about is there any
position on your staff that takes in the calls after such an emergency that we had
regarding the sirens that are not working? Is there somebody that takes a call, any
position?
MR. IINUMA: Yeah. Thank you for that question, Chair, Chairperson Medeiros. The
siren system, as you may all be aware, is. . .a State system.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. IINUMA: And the Civil Defense Agency serves to monitor during the soundings.
And what we do is we pass the information back up to the State to, to look at
situations where sirens have not sounded. We test the sirens, as you know, on the
first working day of the month, and after the sirens are sounded we call the
various geographical areas where sirens are located to get a validation of whether
or not they have in fact sounded. And my staff does that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MR. IINUMA: And if we get reports from the community, we pass that information on
to State Civil Defense, and, and -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So...
MR. IINUMA: --they handle the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. So you, you have people in place in
different locations to provide that information to, to your staff?
MR. IINUMA: Well, you know, one of the issues that we face on an ongoing basis is
getting the validation for accurate siren sounding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. IINUMA: We prevail upon people in the neighborhood that live by, and we have
numbers for those. Some of the neighborhoods are difficult to, to get numbers
for. And in fact my staff went out and goes out and does on-site, house-to-house
site visits to see if we can get people to step forward and, and be available for
that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, I appreciate the...that planning that
you have within your office to do that. Because I know in the last emergency
there were a lot of calls in, on Oahu, too, of sirens not sounding. And, you know,
we have that on East Maui, too. So thank you for covering that part of the
emergency for us and sending that information to the State. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. Gen, I'm, I'm just a
little confused in your presentation about the staffing. So can you clarify that you
said you set money aside so that you could create or pay for the position. It is
currently reflected that there is no position, but you said that there is a position
there so.
MR. IINUMA: All, all of the funding, all of the staff EPs that you see before you were,
were ...
NOTE: Silence.
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MR. IINUMA: . . . are with the Civil Defense Agency. The, the Technician position was
not funded, and there were other positions that were unfilled at the time, and I
used the cost savings from the unfilled positions to staff that one.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So let me just stop for a second.
MR. IINUMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: The CD Technician I position that I'm -MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --showing here was not budgeted for this
current fiscal year.
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So you're saying that that position is
filled and funded?
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And the funding for that is what you're
describing as cost savings?
MR. IINUMA: During that period of time, the Plans & Operations position was vacant,
and that was being was recruited from. People...we've had a number of turnovers
within the Agency, and as the...as those positions turned over...for example, the
Civil Defense .. .
. . . Plans & Operations Officer, we had a Staff Specialist position that was
unfilled. Those, those monies that were not used for that was used for the Civil
Defense Technician slot. The Account Clerk position was, was partly filled, and
so I used, I used whatever resources available within the salary, salary and wages
realm to be able to support the positions that I had onboard.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So then just so I understand it,
what you're showing here is eight full-time employees.
MR. IINUMA: I believe that it's going to be asked for seven, seven and a half for . . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So that number will change then?
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MR. IINUMA: According to our, our projections, we, we want to maintain some budget
constraints because of the economic situation, and so we're not going to be
filling...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I guess my confusion is that as
I'm looking at your spreadsheets here, you're showing eight employees. You're
showing one that has not been funded, but you're saying that one of these
positions was not filled so you took a part of that funding and then you shifted
that amount to another position to fund that. Is that...am I getting it right?
MR. IINUMA: The vacant, yeah, vacant positions...the cost savings from vacant, vacant
positions was used to fund that Technician slot. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. IINUMA: And in this current request in the 2011, you'll note all the positions
except the Civil Defense Staff Specialist II is fully funded. The Staff Specialist II
position is being half-time or 50 percent funded.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. But in the current fiscal year, are
you saying then that you shifted some of that funds into other positions? Into
funding . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. IINUMA: In the current, in the current fiscal year the, the vacancies that we have in
the Staff Specialist position is being used to fund that, that Civil Defense
Technician.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So you're moving some money
around then is what you're doing? Okay. I just needed to understand
how... 'cause what I'm seeing and what you're saying is two different things. So
thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before I call on Member Johnson, I just
want...don't want to leave this area here. If you look at your footnotes, Members,
the position that he talked earlier, Footnote No. 3, and, and the reason for the
seven-and-a-half, the budgeted for 2010 was for 50 percent of that one particular
specialist.
. . . And then. . .so 50 percent is 18,000, and than the other cost savings, I, I don't
know where it came from, but, you know, when you move into 2011, then
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actually that's an increase of one personnel. . .that wasn't accounted for
previously. So it's an added cost to the Department in regards to manpower.
. . . So, Mr. Pablo, I think you got . . .(laughter). . . some homework to do in
regards . . . (laughter). . . to that. So thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and again I think the way that this is
presented is somewhat confusing. But, Mr. Iinuma, correct me if I'm wrong, but
the position which is listed, I guess, 6, CD Staff Specialist II. It's 42,000, but
you've minused [sic] out 21,012. That's because it's only a half-year funding,
you're going to delay filling that position?
MR. IINUMA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But ultimately the total wage base that you're
looking at, what is, what is that going to be? Because I, I don't want to deal with
part...I guess, correct me if I'm wrong. If I took the $340,933 and I added in the
extra $21,012. . .that would be what we're looking at for 2012 budget or, or that
would be what an annualized version would be. Is that correct?
MR. IINUMA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So what we're approving . . .(laughter). . .
Mr. Chair, is more than what we're really looking at, and this is . . . (laughter). . . I
don't know.
MR. IINUMA: No, I'm not sure. If, if you're asking...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm looking down the road, Mr Iinuma-MR. IINUMA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --because what I'm looking at is what are we
committing to over the long haul? And once the positions are created and funded,
we're maybe looking at a partial funding for this year, but in the future, I'm
looking at hard dollars that will have to be gotten from somewhere in -MR. IINUMA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --future budgets. So I think we just need to
recognize--
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --what we're looking at.
MR. IINUMA: Thank you. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sharp eyes. Yeah. The CD Technician is not an approved
position. . .it wasn't funded, anyway. And now, now...and you're not the only
department that's doing this. There's other departments that had gone and found
money somehow to fill in some vacancies. And, you know, we'll go through with
the different departments regarding how they filled those positions. Mr. Pablo?
MR. PABLO: Chair, Chair Pontanilla, Members of the Budget and Finance Committee.
Let me try to briefly cover this 'cause as the Chair said, there are some positions
which were partly funded last year. This is a program budget, and the Chair
correctly stated last year on the second reading that because if it's a program
budget one's able to use money from Salaries and Wages to go to Operations,
Equipment to Operations, so forth. There's, there's a philosophy really on what
the County's role is right now. We are in a downturn in the economy. Does the
County retrench, do we stop hiring, do we stop purchasing, do we stop doing
Capital Improvement Projects? Several years ago, the Mayor recognized we were
going into a downturn, and in 2008, a fiscal implementation team was formed.
This was the Finance Director, the Managing Director, and the Budget Director.
In the area of the Salaries and Wages which we're going through right now, we
decided that it's not appropriate to do an across-the-board freeze. We decided
that it's best that the County is an economic engine. We do have a
half-a-billion-dollar budget. We do have a role in reducing the unemployment
which is at record highs. We do have a role in the hotel and construction industry
which have suffered in the past three years. Rather than freezing positions or all
positions we've identified positions which will not have a long-term impact if
they're not funded. We identified, in the past year, 69 positions. We've worked
with the Personnel Department. We have this right on my desk so if anything
comes over for approval it will not be approved. But regard to these other
positions, we have to recognize that some positions are very, very difficult to fill.
Several years ago when I first took this job, I noticed that there were vacancies for
two years or more. We now have an opportunity to find qualified candidates. We
now have an opportunity for the departments to use a program budget and see
what they need now which gonna help, help the economy, and not only economy,
but make this County government run efficiently. So that's my comments,
Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Pablo. And, and Chair
want to correct his statement. This position is an approved position but wasn't
funded in 2010. Somehow monies were found to fill this position. My question
is that if, if we say--and I understand what you're saying, Mr. Pablo--if you're
saying that you found monies in, in different accounts either the B, A, B, or C
Accounts to provide the dollars to fill a position, then my question to you then
when it becomes the following year, how do you reduce your costs even further in
regards to. . .based on all the projections for 2010? And how do we control, you
know, we approve the budget here as a Council, and how do we know that, you
know, the A Account, B Account, and C Account is being utilized to fill in
vacancies, to purchase equipment, to help in operations? Maybe what we need
from the Administration--I don't know, on a monthly basis, quarterly basis--is an
update in regards to how much money move...had been moved from one account
to another account so that you could do your operations. And, you know, give us
a really good handle in regards to, you know, if we're not putting enough money
in administration. . .to hire people and you taking away from the B Account or the
C Account, then you fall short on the B and C Account. . .maybe there's some fat
in the B and C Accounts. So I, I, I don't know. But because this is a program
budget it's, it, you know, I see it clearly that we can utilize the funds from A, B, C
Accounts to do other things that, you know, we don't see. So I think going
forward whenever a big change has been made in moving monies, that we account
for that. That's my comment.
MR. IINUMA: Excuse me, Chairman Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. IINUMA: In regards to the Civil Defense budget. . in the Salary and Wages versus
the Operations, no monies were, were expended from Operations. I kept all the
salaries, all wage salaries. . .equal. So if there was a vacancy, those monies were
used for the salary. So no monies were moved from A, B, or C Accounts. They
were very clear, salaries remained in Salaries, and so forth. I made certain of that,
that whatever we came before you was very clear in that. In terms of the
vacancies that we had, unfortunately we've had people that came in...and Civil
Defense is not a realm where...it's for everyone. Sometimes people come in with
the thought that they would like to work in our area, and for whatever reasons
they, they find out that it's not such. So as a result, we've had some vacancies in
there. And, and I try to utilize the staff within. . .and to promote from within to
allow the kind of, if you may, a career ladder to occur for, for people to...who
have the ability and have the desire and dedication to move up the, move up the
ladder.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, thank you for your comments. And the other thing that,
you know, once we approve a position, then that position should be filled as
requested by the Department. Or when you change a position to another position
and hire something else then, you know, that's something that we need to
consider as Council Members. Because we're making decisions here based on
information that we receive from the department, and we go ahead and hire
different type personnel that had been requested during that particular budget
year. So, you know, you do have a position that. . .was changed from an
Administration Assistant position to a CD Staff Specialist. So, you know, those
things we don't see during the year, unless somehow you provide that information
to this Council. So, you know, going forward, I. . .you know, Chair is intending
to request that kind information when changes are made to the budget itself. And
it's a check and balance. It's a check and balance.
. . . So, Member Baisa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you...thank you, Chair. I think that this has been
a very good discussion and it's very preparatory to our next department that we'll
be talking to, and that's Personnel, and we might ask more questions at that time.
But I have a little bit of a different twist on this personnel issue, and I'm
wondering if the Director can tell us. . .do you have a sufficient staff to do the
work that needs to be done? You might have been...just had a test during the
tsunami alert. You know we all...the Civil Defense is like, let's see, even a
helicopter. . .it's not really important until somebody's dying in front of you or
the Civil Defense sirens go up, and then we're, we're on alert and you become the
man of the hour. How are you staffed to handle those kind of things? And how
did it go during the tsunami?
MR. IINUMA: . . . Thank you. Is this wish list time? . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, just a little bit, I'd like to know. I mean how dire is
it in your office or is it dire at all and you have what you need?
MR. IINUMA: . . . Thank you, Councilmember Baisa. Certainly, we could all have
more staffing. Civil Defense is no, no different.
. . . I would certainly like to see positions for Lanai and Molokai. It would
be...having people on the ground in the areas where there is potential for
geographical isolation, such as Hana or Lahaina, would be very appropriate. To
man our office on a day-to-day basis, it would be extremely helpful to have an
Educational Officer to provide the kind of information and the services to the
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public as well as professionals on an ongoing basis. There's always a need for,
for. . .much more expertise, especially when we have such a wide range of issues
from natural to man-made disasters. Having said that though, the difficulty also
comes in to whether or not we're able to staff them with appropriate personnel,
and finding people with the kind of expertise that have the demeanor to stay
within. . .and operations that can change overnight or just by the minute is very
difficult. So, yes, we certainly could have more staffing. I mean no, no doubt
about that. And there's a lot of work to be done. The County has grown
significantly over the last several decades. We haven't had a major disaster occur
for decades, and so there's a lot of work to be done. I would say that, yes, the, the
broad answer is, yes, we would like to have much more staffing. Right now. . .the
economics or economy really dictates a lot of this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Let me focus you again. I, I guess a Santa wish
list was not what I had in mind. During the recent tsunami alert, did you have the
folks in your office that could handle whatever needed to be done or did you find
that there were things you would need to do that you couldn't do?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. IINUMA: . . . Yes. We, we certainly could...we, we handled it the best we could,
but had we had more staffing it would certainly allow for. . .a much more robust
kind of response. Having said that also it, it's not only the staffing, but I believe
that if we looked at the other counties and how they responded, one of the
significant areas that we ought to be looking at--and Councilmember Medeiros
alluded to the siren system. I believe that the siren system technology is. . .one
that's familiar to most people, but certainly the kind of new technologies that we
have that were, were employed on Big Island and on Kauai are very appropriate.
They are very expensive systems. We're looking at somewhere in the
neighborhood of upwards of 160-somewhat-thousand dollars a year. But they
provide. . .as Kauai did and I, I believe they, they contacted a significant amount
of their population within ten minutes--and these are the kind of technology, I
think it would be very, very. . .important for us to look at.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So would that entail someone on your staff or somebody
on consultant or whatever to assist us with implementing that?
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. And we'll discuss the
other issue with Personnel. Thank you.
MR. IINUMA: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a follow-up question. In, in your response to
Member Baisa you mentioned about, you know, coverage for the different areas
and training. So how do you do that now?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. IINUMA: . . . Could you, could you be more specific?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You say you needed personnel on Lanai, you needed personnel
in Hana. . .Molokai, you need a personnel for training. I don't know what else
you mentioned, but how do you do that now in regards to ensuring Lanai,
Molokai, Hana, the sirens are working properly? Do we utilize any other
departments in regards to supporting your Department during testing of sirens or
even during this last tsunami that we had? And the other area was training--how
do you provide training to your personnel at this time? If you have any programs
and, you know, ways of covering the areas that you mentioned.
MR. IINUMA: There's a lot that you, you said. Let me see if I can break that down. In
terms of geographical coverage, we prevail a lot upon our partners, partners in
public safety, Fire and Police Department in the areas that you mentioned.
Molokai is extremely fortunate to have a very dedicated citizen base that has
formed an advisory group, and they use the Molokai General Hospital as their
point of, of gathering. They call it their, their temporary emergency operating
center there, and we stay in close communication with them. On the island of
Lanai that body is being developed right now. I'm in contact with a number of
the community members who also serve in...who have said that they would serve
in an advisory capacity. So that kind of communication to those communities are,
are open. In terms of training and education of our staff, we, we do it on an
ongoing basis. It's, it's certainly--with new staff. Right now I've got three staff
that are with me for less than three months, I'm sorry, less than six months. The
most senior staff has been on Civil Defense for six years, and the next one is
myself. In April, I'll make five years. And then after myself, it's a little over a
year. The institutional memory within Civil Defense is such where with a
turnover in staff you lose institutional memory, certainly new things are coming
aboard. Because of...because our County is a recipient of State Homeland
Security funding, one of the requirements of the County is to have ongoing
Incident Command System training. And all of our staff has taken that training.
Certainly there's much more training to be done. Training is just one aspect of
how you respond, and so we work very closely with our partners in public safety
to try to get that kind of training that we need ongoing, as well as prevailing upon
entities such as the National. . .Weather system, I'm sorry, the National Weather
Service, Pacific Tsunami Warning Center, and others. So, you know, it's a
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constant battle between that and also educating the community as best we can.
With our small staff, it's very difficult, but we do attend some of the major
functions within the community and try to provide. . .personalized attention to
those agencies or, or groups like the Kiwanis and, and others.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I was looking more like, you know, if you yourself
do the training for your personnel. But you mentioned like Homeland Security. I
know there is a grant, and we haven't gone to the grants, but since we're talking
about positions you do have two vacant position in the Homeland Security that
hasn't been filled. I, I don't know what's the hang-up in, in that particular
vacancies that may help your Department in some of the things that you telling us
this morning.
MR. IINUMA: Those...the Homeland Security positions are primarily to assist in, in the
management of the grant.
. . . It's. . .over the years, and, and I need to mention this, too, that while we
do. . .we do have....our budget is general funded for half a million dollars,
roughly. Over the years, Civil Defense has gone after and has received in excess
of a million dollars a year on, on grant revenues which is assisting the County in,
in bringing some valuable resources for public safety. These grants are,
are...been very helpful in, in establishing or, or helping to establish a very good,
you know, communication system within our County. And again the, the
positions that are so-called vacant have been...are being, you know, secured.
We're, we're looking at bringing in individuals to assist us with that grant
management's section of Homeland Security.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So who does your grants right now?
MR. IINUMA: Primarily myself, Account Clerk, and one of the Technicians. Every,
everybody has a little bit. It's carved out among our staff, and we have just been
able to secure. . .a, a consultant to assist us with the. . .grant management
application.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I, I would take a real close look and start filling in those two
vacant positions to help you in your operations in trying to get grants for this
County. You know, it's there, the money is there, but we haven't filled the
position for Fiscal Year 2010. I don't know about the previous years, if you had
those positions that, you know, through Homeland Security. And if we had, you
know, we should have filled those positions because those are positions that will
help you in your operations.
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MR. IINUMA: Yeah. Understanding, you know, Pontanilla, Chairman Pontanilla.
Thank you very much for those comments.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. All my questions related to
A Account have long been answered that I had.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But just to offer some fair and consistency, because it
was brought out early on yesterday about where we're going to start on the room,
you know, with the line of questioning, right side of the room versus left side. I'd
like to put in a request that we start, when we get to the Transportation
Department, that we start on this side because we have a lot of questions. And as
you heard from testimony this morning related to the proposed cut of the funding
for the air ambulance. And I know Member Baisa also requested information
from the Department so I'm sure she has a lot of questions. So just to offer some
fairness and consistency, when we get to Transportation Department, if you can
start us off? And I know we got...we're looking at a short recess, too, as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'm okay if you want to start with Personnel on the
other side of the room, but just-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --I want to put my request early on for Transportation
since it was -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --it was brought up earlier so just to be fair. Thank
you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Raise your hands when I come. . .or when the
Department of Transportation, you know, is with us, probably this afternoon.
Members, any more questions on the A Account? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, you know, as I'm, I'm
trying to take a look at this, what we don't have is the '09 figures, but we have
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totals here. What that would have been helpful in terms of understanding how
many position counts were actually filled in those fiscal years to help us move to
the current 210...2010. But for me I think what I'm, you know, looking at your
notes, while they are positions that are allowed for, the actual implementation
or...of the position is not a really a 1.0, it's a .5, yeah, if you look at your position
count. So what that does for me is essentially what you're doing is that your
change amount is, is in $70,000 or 26 percent change from the previous or the
current budget year. So what does not make a lot of sense to me is that if these
were fully funded, eight positions were fully funded in the current fiscal year of
269, somehow they were not fully implemented and monies were moved around.
But in the movement around, we now end up with a proposed budget that is
increased by 26 percent. So that bears some, some clarification in terms of--if I'm
looking at the notes here and trying to piece the notes together with the actual
budget proposal, it becomes confusing. And, yes, I understand the idea of a
program budgeting, but. . .bottom line is this--the counts do not change, but now
the amount is changed by 26 percent. So we're moving from. . .an actual 269,
and we're moving to a 340,000 change. And, and that to me is, is. . .is difficult to
try and piece together here. But it's showing that we're increasing along the way.
And how did the increase occur when positions were only half filled? And then
now in the proposed budget they're not only going to be fully implemented, but
now they're going to be increased, you know, to the point of 26 percent.
So. . .that's just my, my comment. The other question, Chair, since you brought
up the Civil Defense program, can I ask a question about that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Civil Defense program?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Relating to personnel?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: On the TS, um ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Oh, you're looking at the grants.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: The Civil Defense...yes, in, in the Grant
Section.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Just, just a real simple question.
It's...what's provided here is the Fiscal Year 2008, Fiscal Year 2009, and then
Fiscal Year 2010. So. . .just so I understand, the position counts show zero. So
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that means in those two previous Fiscal Years '08 and '09. . .were there monies
that were granted in those years? Or were these proposed for grants? And I'm
looking on 1-8.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . I don't know. Budget Director, we can go back and look at
the '09, '08. . .numbers, if there were numbers in regards to the question that
Member Kaho' ohalahala is asking.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: They're, they're reflected in our current
fiscal year budget, yeah?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: The 2010.
. . . And then my only question is. . .are these actually in, in your Department,
these funds or are they proposed grant funding?
MR. IINUMA: These are proposed grant funds. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So if they're not secured then,
then essentially those positions don't get filled?
MR. IINUMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So in '08 they were not fulfilled?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . What you're showing here on
that...this same page.
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: In '08 they were not filled and in '09
they were not filled.
MR. IINUMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then what you are proposing
for the current fiscal year is these two grant positions to be funded?
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MR. IINUMA: Yes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And have they been funded yet?
MR. IINUMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So they're unfulfilled. So no, no monies
are available and that's why these positions aren't, aren't, aren't implemented
then?
MR. IINUMA: Yes. The application has been submitted and we're waiting for word on
it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. That, that clarifies my, my
questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Just for your information on the Homeland
Security, it was budgeted for '08 as well as '09, but it's not reflected in here.
Okay.
MR. PABLO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Pablo?
MR. PABLO: I mean they are reflected. Mr., Mr. Iinuma mentioned that if you look on
that Page 1-8, the grants are separated by fiscal year. The top one is for Fiscal
Year '10, and then the Fiscal Year '09 is directly below, and the Fiscal Year 2008
is directly below that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Members, if you have any more questions on A
Account, if you can forward it to the Chairman and then we'll get answers from
the Department. So before we go...Members, you have any questions on the B
Account which remains flat?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No . . . (inaudible).. .

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 23, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala...Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I...the B Account is the operating? Correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out, and I...this is just a
recollection from last year. I know that we had talked about the, I guess, the
equipment which would have been for West Maui and I guess some of the other
purchase we had done. . .I think you put in repeaters or you used money for
repeaters. Where do we stand equipment-wise as to how we're equipped to
communicate with the various communities? 'Cause I know Mr. Webber was
going to donate, I guess, some CB equipment, and I just wondered where we
stand on that.
MR. IINUMA: Yeah. I'm not aware of any donation from a Mr. Webber, but in terms of
our allocations towards ham radio repeaters, we are, we are almost complete with
the entire County project--and significantly more than what was allocated. We
were able to access some Homeland Security funding also to take care of it. And
I, I believe our County is probably. . .for, for ham radio, anyway, the most
adequately. . .supported system in the State.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I think the equipment was maybe not
donated to the County, but it was some kind of arrangement with, I guess,
somebody else in. . .and maybe Intrawest in West Maui. But I, I'm not concerned
about that. The biggest thing I want to know is are we fully equipped to handle
emergencies so that we can now effectively communicate in any part of Maui
County through Civil Defense?
MR. IINUMA: Well, again, you know, when you ask that question, when you say "fully
equipped", I...it, it really is technology that I, I can't speak clearly on. That's
why I work very closely with our, our partners in not only the Police Department
but also MIS. And the system that they've put together and designed, that I've
been sitting in on, is extremely robust. But it is technology and there are issues
regarding. . .how that will function when all the power and everything else goes
down. So. . .to better answer your question, I think would be to get us together
with the technical experts rather than myself. As far as I can see, we
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communicate extremely well, especially on the public safety side, it's built, it's
built very robustly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you don't have any of your own equipment?
MR. IINUMA: When I say "own equipment", we, we have ham equipment -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MR. IINUMA: --within Civil Defense as well as other kinds of technology. But what we
do is when we, when we fund a program, it's for the Countywide. And so
it's. . .within every jurisdiction.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it's not specifically contained, then, within your
budget or within your control? You know like, I guess, I'm looking at equipment
that would ordinarily go out to people that are coordinators, that are able to feed
information back into you, physical equipment so that you can talk to person A
who's in Hana, you can talk to person B who's in Lahaina.
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's my little vision of what is supposed to be
going on when we have Civil Defense emergencies.
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So correct me if I'm wrong.
MR. IINUMA: Yes. And, and that is correct. I mean we do...we are able to speak with
our Fire and Police personnel. And...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. IINUMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And you have no coordinators within any other
community other than, you know, 'cause I know we used to have West Maui
coordinator. We used to have coordinators at the hotels and Hana. And those
positions and those people no longer are there?
MR. IINUMA: We do have communications with many of the people that you are
speaking about, such as the public...whoever's involved with public safety
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certainly, and some of the hotel and security associations.
We have
communication with others in the community via ham radio who are part of the
Maui County Amateur Radio Group that support us in times of emergencies. So
that communication system is -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. IINUMA: --is available.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I think it would be really helpful just
because this issue comes up all the time during our Civil Defense meetings or
emergency meetings. The communities always ask the question--well, what
happens in the case of emergency? And pretty much their feeling is that they
don't have enough information to understand what it is to expect during periods
of emergency. The lack of communication with the community as to what their
expectations are is, is lacking. So my request would be if we can find out,
through Civil Defense, some type of plan, you know, and I see, I guess, in their,
their plans they're supposed to be finalizing some kind of an emergency
preparedness plan. But we, we just can't wait on this anymore, this has been way
too long. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions on the B
Account?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, how about the C Account, Equipment?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think we covered that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If there's any questions regarding the B Account, C
Account. . .if you can forward it to the Chair, we'll get information. Yeah, as far
as, Member Johnson, your request, you know, we should have a meeting strictly
in regards to the questions that you asked, you know-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --what is the role of Civil Defense, especially communication.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So. . .probably after the budget, we'll --
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --try see. Okay. Members, that's all I have for the Civil
Defense Office at this time. Again if you do have more questions, put it in
writing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Not, not, not, not any more questions, but I
wanted to also state to you that you have been fair as far as recognizing, like
Mr. Nishiki with specific questions. You have been very fair. So I wanted that
known that yesterday's comments were made early in the day when we were
uncertain about how this was going to work. You've shown and demonstrated
continuously, as other Members have stated. So if they're concerned, your
fairness is impeccable. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you . . . (laughter). . . Let's not go...get into that.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . . fairness.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll be as fair as I can.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, I know we've been at it for. . .two hours and five
minutes. So at this time, the Chair is going to call a ten-minute recess, and we'll
reconvene at 11:15, and we'll take up Personnel Department at that time. So this
meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:05 a.m.
11:22 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, this, this morning, the second department that we're
going to be reviewing in regards to their Fiscal Year 2011 budget is the
Department of Personnel Services. We do have Director Lynn Krieg. . .as well
as...
God... Lance.
...
..
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hiromoto. I'm sorry, Lance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know I, I look at you, I see you father's face but I cannot
remember the name
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Senior moments. That's what it is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So at this time I'd like to call on either--Lynn Krieg, if you
have some opening comments.
MS. KRIEG: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Committee Members. Good morning.
Essentially, our Department budget for Fiscal Year 2011 is $190,792 or
11.3 percent less than our Fiscal Year 2010 budget which was 2.4 percent less
than our Fiscal Year 2009 budget. Our Fiscal Year 2010 budget is currently at
$1,687,714. Our proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2011 is $1,496,922. We have
one program for the Department of Personnel Services. In our proposed Fiscal
Year 2011 budget, our Salary and Wages is decreased by $89,252 or 7.4 percent,
52,000 of this is attributed to furloughs. And our Operations is decreased by
$101,540 or 21.6 percent. So if you have any questions, I'm prepared to try to
answer them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, on the proposed bill, it's Page 9;
Program Budget, Page 15-1; and Budget Details, starting on Page 13-1. We'll go
through the A Account. The Chair has only one question regarding the Chair, the
A Account, and that is your Human Resources Clerk I, that hasn't been filled yet.
Do you intend to fill this position or . . .
MS. KRIEG: We have not created the position. At the present time, we have been sort
of using the, that position. . .cunently as, you know, savings. At the present time,
we're doing all right without the position. But in anticipation of what, you know,
the economy coming back and whatever activities returning to normal or
increasing, we may have need for the position, and at that time we would create it
and fill it.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 23, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So is there a chance to fill the position on July 1 st?
MS. KRIEG: As soon as July 1 st ...like I said, everything would depend on what would
be happening with the economy. My honest estimation is that as soon as July 1 st,
probably not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So if we delay. . .not "delay", but reduce the budgeted amount
to maybe nine months . . .
MS. KRIEG: I would agree.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we'll take a look at reduction of three months on the,
on the cost. Got it, Staff? Okay, fine. Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, no, I'll yield to Ms. Baisa 'cause she had
some specific questions -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --in this area. She mentioned that she had some
specific questions, so I'll yield to Ms. Baisa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina, you got any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. I'll, I'll, yeah, I have a question, but I'll...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Go ahead . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Just one question. Chair, if I may ask with
regard to the Program Budget under Goals, if I could ask Ms. Krieg.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Where it states, the second bullet point, classify
positions in a timely manner; recruit for and retain high-value employees; provide
training to employees for professional and personal development; and the labor
relations issues; and, and so on. Even with your proposed budget, with the cuts,
are you still going to be able to meet these goals?
. . . And, and if so, how?
NOTE: Silence.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Ms. Krieg?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It also includes: handle labor relations issues; maintain
compliance with employment labor laws, civil service rules and regulations;
collective bargaining agreements; and implement technology and methods which
enhance service. And that's the keyword there, Mr. Chair, enhance service, make
it better or improve it--communication, and productivity. So I'm just curious as
to how the Department will meet this goal in spite of the reduction, and if you're
able to.
MS. KRIEG: Again, it will all depend on what happens as the year moves forward
regarding the activity in the economic recovery. For, for one of...one thing, there
has not been as many expansion positions being requested or approved, which
reduces the amount of classification requirements. In, in terms of classification,
the only types of classifications that we have been experiencing are
either. . .reallocations or. . .reclassification for positions that have been vacated
because of people retiring. And at the present time, we're able to handle those.
But if things change to where. . .we see an upturn in the economy, to where
things, you know, start to move quickly or there's an expand, expanded need for
some of the, say, positions that. . .departments aren't currently filling and they
start to submit requests for these positions to filled, then we may have an increase
in need. But . . .
. . . we, we don't...we, we think at the present time we'll be able to function with
the staff that we have.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So long as, so long as everything stays relative, then I
guess no . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. KRIEG: Well, the types of impacts that may feel, you know, if, if it's, if it reaches
the point where we'll be impacted, we may have some. . .reduction in the number
of. . .employment advertisements that we will be able to run, maybe. Right now,
it's pretty much. . .on-demand, so to speak, you know, whenever departments ask
us to recruit. . .we'll pretty much either recruit that week or the following week.
But we may have to, depending on funding. . . recruit maybe twice a month on a
schedule basis. We may also have to reduce our Countywide training, reduce
our. . .exam proctoring. . .reduce some of the staff training, and reduce our travel
time for negotiations. We are coming up on renegotiating of all contracts, but
instead of face-to-face and, you know, actually sending people to negotiations, we
may have to do. . .conference calls.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. That's where the technology part comes in
handy.
MS. KRIEG: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Madam Director. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Krieg, for
being here. You heard the earlier discussion that we were having in regards to the
position in Civil Defense. And my question is what role does your Department
pay, play in somebody that gets hired like that, where apparently, you know, they,
they use their flexibility in implementing the budget to hire a person when there
really isn't the position created? If, if I understood what that was all about.
MS. KRIEG: Uh. . .I'm not. . .sure which position exactly you were talking about
because there were two positions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr Iinuma stated that he used money that he had in the
budget, you know, 'cause they have budget flexibility between A, B, and C. And
he hired somebody, but he didn't actually hire one position. But there was
concern about that position and how it would appear in the next year.
MS. KRIEG: Is this the...okay. . . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't know exactly the title. I'm moving on here.
MS. KRIEG: Okay. I was half listening . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What I'm trying to figure out is this. If there is no
authorized position for that, for that department, can a department hire somebody
using flexibility and, and carryover or leftover money or unused money, whatever
you wanna call it, in their budget? How can they do that?
MS. KRIEG: Okay. Let me explain to you what the, the process is. We have what we
call a "Request for Position Action" form the, which all position actions are
governed by this form. And the, the form on this...the departments use this form
to either request that a position be created, that a position be re-described or
reallocated, that a position be filled. The departments initiate the form, and on
that form they indicate what action it is that they're requesting. That form then
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goes to the Budget Director. The Budget Director then indicates whether or not
there are funds available, and the source of the funds. . .and whether that request
is approved or disapproved. Then after that, the form goes to the Managing
Director, and the Managing Director reviews the request. . .again approves or
disapproves. After that, the request comes to the Department of Personnel
Services. So actually when we receive it, we're just supposed to take action,
whatever action is requested.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it is possible then for a department to go through that
process and hire an employee who was not or a position that was not in the budget
that's approved by the Council?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. KRIEG: . . . According to that form, right, the form will indicate that the
department's request to fill the position was reviewed by the Budget Director, and
the Budget Director and the Managing Director authorized the filling of the
position, authorized it, reviewed it, and indicated that there were funds available
for filling the position. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That doesn't really answer my question, but I'll leave it
to others who know more about this issue to pursue it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I will wait for my second question. Chair, you
probably want to follow up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to the Civil Defense, I, I think the Chair had
indicated that it was an unfunded position -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --but actually it was a, it was a position, and we left the
position vacant without the funding. And as you recall, last year when we went
through the budget cycle, we. . .we kept the positions but we didn't fund the
positions. So and, and, and for Mr. Iinuma, he found savings from somewhere to
fill that position. So the position was always there --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --but wasn't funded for 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for clearing that up. So there was always a
position -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and what he did was creatively find the money to fund
it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there's positions like that in the different departments that
we didn't fund but we left the positions as is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for clarifying that. 'Cause I think it's really
important, because if you could find money in your B Accounts, you could be
hiring people. But that turns into amazing liability for the County in future times.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. That solves that. The second
question that I have for Ms. Krieg is you mentioned furlough savings in your
Salaries and Wages, and I'm, I'm very interested in looking at your goals and
objectives for the upcoming year. I imagine that one of your large tasks will be to
implement furloughs, because, you know, we can say okay, Friday we're not
going to work, or Wednesday, or Tuesday, or whatever day people choose after
they work this out with unions and everybody. I would imagine your
Department's going to play a huge role in deciding the implementation. Are you
ready for that? . . .(laughter). . .
MS. KRIEG: We're in the process.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're in the process of?
MS. KRIEG: Of working on our furlough plans and negotiating or meeting with the
unions to discuss the furlough plans with the union.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I don't know if this is the right department to ask,
but at some point I think it would be very nice if we could get information about
what these furlough savings are in the various departments. We've been told that
there's a 4.6 or whatever figure. But what does that translate into in terms of
dollars?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think Mr. Pablo indicated the savings, but you didn't indicate
the savings per department -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on furlough days.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair. Maybe I can clarify . . . (inaudible). . . The, the savings
for the UPW and HGEA is approximately 3.1 million, approximately.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Three point one.
MR. PABLO: We would have to do some adjustments based on different type of
positions and so forth. What you'll see when each department comes up, in the
Salaries and Wages there's a line for salary adjustments. That is our
approximation of what the furlough savings will be.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. And so...
MR. PABLO: For example in the Personnel -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. PABLO: --section.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. PABLO: There's a line for. . .minus $52,000.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . Where is that, Mr. Pablo?
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MR. PABLO: That's on Page 13-2. Immediately under the line for the EP counts of
20 employees, there's a line for salary adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. And that should be in every department then?
MR. PABLO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that is with the one-day furlough?
MR. PABLO: That's, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. That's a good figure to have, because then we can
see what would happen if it were more than one day. Thank you very much.
MR. PABLO: It does vary from, from actually department to, to department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. It's factored on their total salaries.
MR. PABLO: That's...well it...and, and which ones are HGEA, which are UPWs,
which are excluded managerial personnel, things of that sort. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. 'Cause you have all these various union contracts
you're dealing with that are not all the same. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And I'm just looking at just exactly the item
that you're talking about. I understand the Director and Deputy Director not
being covered under any contracts as far as furlough savings. But then there's
like a Human Resources Specialist--about midway down the list, Specialist II or I.
I guess, II. Then there's several other positions, like a Private Secretary,
Technicians, and then Clerk and Assistant. So are those like part-time positions
to begin with or is there. . .a justification or reason why there's no savings as far
as furlough? 'Cause I noticed that, you know, where there's minuses in some of
the cases, and actually there's pluses in some cases. . .which I'm not really sure
why those--you know, like, if you could just kind of explain--it would be in the
change amount column on Page 13-2, the third column over.
NOTE: Very long silence.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . . You understand what I'm asking?
MR. PABLO: No. Could you repeat that question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. PABLO: Let me see I can follow you through.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm, I'm looking at the change...
MR. PABLO: I do have Page 13-2 in front of me.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. I'm looking at the change column, which is
just the next to the last column on the right-hand side of the page.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If we're looking at savings that are attributable to
furlough -MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --if the items in that column have nothing to do with
furlough, if those are critical positions and nobody will taking...be taking any
furloughs whatsoever. . .I just want to know.
MR. PABLO: Oh, no, no. That's the...what you see in the third column, I see what
you're doing. What that, that third column is simply the change from Fiscal Year
'10 to Fiscal Year '11. That has nothing to do with the furlough. Okay. This is
just the change in the salary for whatever reason, and the furlough is actually at
the bottom, salary adjustments, right below that total--one million, one hundred
twenty eight...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's $52,000.
MR. PABLO: Yeah. And that's the...that's our approximation what the furlough
savings would be.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And that is applied, not necessarily, to all
positions though? That's correct?
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MR. PABLO: If the positions are under HGEA, UPW, or under the executive order that
the Mayor will sign, they, they would be covered. And as the Mayor said,
everyone from the director, deputy director on down will be covered by the
furlough.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Then...
MR. PABLO: That's, that of course is still, still being negotiated.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And, and I understand that. That's okay. I
guess what I'm curious about is you guys are all over the map, though, on the
change column. So I understand if positions are, you know, like where somebody
hasn't been hired yet or, you know, I, I think the one right in the middle, the
Human Resources Specialist I.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But like in some cases, the salary is going like from
80,000 to 84,000. Are those just ordinary steps, you know, for people to get pay
increases? I thought we were freezing everybody's salary. But . . . (laughter). . . I
just, I, I don't know where you're getting your pluses and your minuses. I guess
that's what I'm asking in that change amount column.
MS. KRIEG: I . . .
. . . I believe the one that you're talking about--if there are any increases, those are
increases due to reclassification, due to more complex or higher level
assignments. Therefore, the job...they're moving from one job class to another.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But. . .correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. Chair, but
anytime there's a change from one classification to another or if there is a creation
of a position that was not previously asked for, the Council, somewhere we're
supposed to be notified. Is that correct, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Similar to what the Civil Defense had done.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And so I, can you maybe. . .to save time, can
you point me to that report? Because there's obviously changes going on
. . . (laughter). . . if there's reclassifications where the wages are going up.
NOTE: Silence.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Obviously, they're not understanding what I'm
asking, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Normally what we look, in last year's budget, when you look at
'10, Fiscal Year '10 -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --we look at the job positions, and, and we approve the budget
based on the information that is provided to us, but we don't know if there were
changes in-between. So I'm...when, when I look at this, when I look at all the
job titles. . .and looking at the budget itself for physical...Fiscal Year 2010, then
all of those jobs actually...I don't know if the Specialist V was a Specialist W.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, we approved the Fiscal Year 2010 budget as
presented. So I, I don't know, the job description that is shown and the money
that is shown for Fiscal Year 2010 is. . .comparable to the position at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Mr. Chair, maybe it would be helpful--to save
time so we're not delaying this--if the Department could respond in writing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just simply giving us the total itemization of what the
devil is going on in their Department. Now I know they know what they're
doing, but / have no clue by looking at this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And maybe we'll get somewhere . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. I think Member Johnson
thoroughly tried to grill this one, but I only have one request and that is, if the
departments would then begin to take the furlough off, savings, and then break
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them apart so that we understand who is being assessed for these savings. And if
they are within the administrative staffing positions versus the UPW versus the
HGEA, then there's a running amount so we have some idea. I would like to
request that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Rather than a lump sum?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: No questions . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. I think that's all for A Account.
And. . .Members, very good questions. The B Account, Operations. I know
they. . .reduced their budget by at least $100,000. If there any questions-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No. No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Some quick questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Professional Services and as well as
Advertisement. Advertisement is strictly because you're not doing as much
advertising because of lack of position, open positions and requests from the
departments?
MS. KRIEG: . . . Uh. . .yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's 6...6101, yeah?
MS. KRIEG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other big, big drop was in Professional
Services. What, what does that entail? 613 --UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --32, yeah.
MS. KRIEG: Professional Services is our training budget.
. . . For. . .like, like our supervisory training classes, and this also includes our
employee assistance program, our E03 training program -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. KRIEG: --things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And, you know, I noticed the rest
was, you know, you guys basically trying to save on airfares and all this other
stuff. So okay, that satisfies. I just wanted to know what the Professional
Service, just for clarification. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, just a follow-up. Then in
line item that says Registration and Training, you have a reduction of what
appears to be at $20,000. So, so what kind of training is that compared to the one
that you just described?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. KRIEG: . . . That is...most of that is our computer training contract that we have.
That's also our UPW drug testing, training and materials, and our staff training.
This year, we also had our internal investigation training. So I guess you can say
our, our. . .non-computer training.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . So these are training other than -MS. KRIEG: I mean -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --technical...
MS. KRIEG: --the, the previous one was our non-computer training.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: The previous was non-computer?
MS. KRIEG: The previous one, under Professional Services, was our non-computer
training.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And these are?
MS. KRIEG: These are like...includes our computer training and then our...the training
necessary for our UPW drug testing, and we also have our internal investigation
training and staff training-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So this is where your, your
description of your major changes within your Department have to do with
reducing training. So you've, you've really reduced these two areas drastically
then?
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MS. KRIEG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Chair, for that
clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, on the C Account, Department is
requesting Leased Office Equipment replacement of $7,800. Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. So that ends the A, B, C Account. I
just have a question for Mr. Pablo in regards to, you know, furlough days--now
that we're reducing hours as we go forward, July 1 st . On the goals and objectives
that all of the departments had come out with, is that based on the furlough days
being implemented?
MR. PABLO: No . . . (inaudible). . . no. The, the information that the departments have
provided us was provided around. . .in the early part of last year,. And then we
put it together in January. The decision to furlough did not come up until the later
half of February, once we got how to account or offset a 53 million shortfall.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the goals and objectives as we go forward per
department--I'm second guessing--but some, some of them won't be met.
MR. PABLO: That's correct. We didn't have time to go back to the departments after
the furloughs were computed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, please be aware of that.
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just have a general question, too, with regard to who
actually is going to be impacted if the furloughs do go through. I realize,
Mr. Pablo, that some departments of course are essential so they would not be
covered under that option, you know, because they're considered critical
personnel for some reason. But with regard to the people that are not covered by
collective bargaining, and because I realize salaries are set by Salary Commission
for certain positions, ours, you know, deputy director, directors. . .those
individuals, from my understanding then, they will not be...their salaries will not
be adjusted, but in order to conserve--whether it's electric or phone or
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whatever--that the department will be shut down for that particular day. And is
that what's going to happen?
MR. PABLO: The details haven't been worked out yet. The first thing we have to do is
to meet with the unions-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. PABLO: --to determine how is that going to happen. And then we'd have to
determine how we're going to implement the furlough, whether it's going to be on
certain number of days or could we possibly look at a little more flexibility so we
can continue to provide a certain level of service. So all of that hasn't been
determined whether...for example, yesterday we talked about do we close down a
satellite, for example, and then we could also save on electricity.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. PABLO: But that's about all you'd save because rent would still be paid.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. Right.
MR. PABLO: And you still have the salary cost of the personnel, unless they're
furloughed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and so what you're looking at then may
be staffing, like maybe on half, half one day and, or maybe like even if there's
four, four Fridays in a month, maybe transitioning that somebody would have one
Friday, another one the next Friday.
MR. PABLO: We would, we would like to see as much flexibility as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. PABLO: But all of this has to be determined after we meet with the, with the
unions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause I know, Mr. Chair, too they were
talking about like the satellite offices, for example, closing those. And of course
that doesn't--as you're aware--it doesn't...it does save just on electricity and
utilities, but that's it.
MR. PABLO: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But yeah I just want to understand how that's going
to work 'cause those are the questions that I'm getting. So if I have a better idea
it makes me feel -MR. PABLO: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --more comfortable . . . (laughter). . . Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Personnel Services?
. . . If not ...Member-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair just, just one more clarification
then. Since the, the Budget Director is saying that the...this Program Budget's
summaries have been put together prior to the, to the other budgetary changes
then, then as I'm looking at this Department alone it means that almost 30 percent
of your, your, your goals and your objectives for this upcoming year will not be or
perhaps be implemented. So how, how do you make those adjustments, is my
question, and, and will the departments be taking a look at their own written goals
and objectives and be making adjustments so that we understand it rather than
waiting till after the fact and come into the next fiscal year? And then the, the
response will be well those were changes because we couldn't do A, B, and C, or
D. So I would like to know then, given the fact that you are going to be making
these changes in your budgets, how will this be now...how would you be
accommodating your own personal departmental goals and objectives, yeah?
What adjustments will you be making there as well?
MR. PABLO: Yeah. Some of the departments probably may be impacted on their goals
and objectives based on, on the furloughs. . .but maybe not all of them. So we
would probably have to through each department and each program to, to see
what needs to be adjusted. We could, we could provide this, this body with an
update on those performance measures.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I mean I think that that would be
something that we should be made of aware of since you are making budgetary
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adjustments then that are going to have direct impact on your departments' goals
and objectives.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Then you should making those
adjustments so that we're aware of what are some of those program areas that
you're going to achieve, and those that you believe that you cannot achieve based
on that budget adjustment.
MR. PABLO: We, we could do that. After, after your, I mean, decision week and
perhaps after first reading we could see what the budget is, and at that time go to
the departments and look at their performance measures and see whether any need
to be changed. And that we could include this so that it'll be reflected in the
Finance Director's quarterly report.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good point. Very good point. Members, any more questions?
. . . If not, I, I want to thank Ms. Krieg and Mr. Hiromoto for being here this
morning. Members, this afternoon we'll take up the Department of
Transportation. . .at 1:30. So the Chair is going to call. . .our lunch recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's three minutes to 12, and we'll return at 1:30 p.m. this
afternoon. This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:57 a.m.
1:31 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . Good afternoon, Members. The Budget and
Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened. We do have the last department
for today and it's the Department of Transportation. The Director is
Don Medeiros and the Deputy Director is Wayne Boteilho. Before starting,
Budget Director, do you have any opening comments regarding Transportation?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. Just, just a general comment. The
Department of Transportation has a program in the General Fund, and they also
have the bus system under the Highway Fund, and they have one CIP, bus
shelters. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros, opening comments?
MR. MEDEIROS: Good afternoon, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
Committee. Thank you for the opportunity to present our 2011 budget. The
budget proposal before you was crafted with the goal of maintaining core services
in keeping with our Charter to facilitate the rapid, safe, and economic movement
of people and goods in Maui County. This proposal is a balance of estimated fare
increases of almost $1 million along with 1 2 million or 8 percent in modifications
to minimize the reduction of service. The handout highlights the
accomplishments of the Department along with the direction of Mayor Tavares to
maintain a safety net of transportation services in the County. The Department of
Transportation has two large programs: the Maui Bus system, funded at little
over $7 7 million with over 2 million boardings annually; and the social service
transportation with funding of about $7 million with about 250,000 boardings
annually.
. . . Two 37-passenger buses were added to the Maui Bus fleet in October with a
County match of about $200,000. Three additional 37-passenger buses will be
added to the Maui Bus fleet in June of this year. This was the AAR...AARA [sic]
money, but we did provide a match of $160,665, if you recall, so that we could
buy a third bus. Due to funding constraints, no expansion routes have been added
this current fiscal year, and none are proposed in the Mayor's budget for next
fiscal year. This was a particularly tough decision as many requests have been
received for new services routes, particularly in the Upcountry and Waihee
communities. Heading into the fifth year of service, the popularity of the Maui
Bus system continues to grow. This fiscal year, we are projecting over
2.2 million passenger boardings or a 12.9 percent increase over last fiscal year,
and a fare box generation of about $1 million. In January, the Maui Bus logged
over 200,000 boardings, averaging 6,436 passengers per day. In February, the
daily average grew to over 6,600 boardings per day. The other program, the
social service transportation program, nine buses will be added to the MEO fleet
in June of this year at a cost of a little over $1 1 million, funded 100 percent
through County funding. Overall, the service provided by Maui Economic
Opportunity met most of their projected goals, with noted exceptions as follows.
The Leisure program achieved 81 percent of its goal in '09 and currently at about
42 percent this fiscal year. The I Shuttle program met only 7 percent of its goal in
'09. Therefore, in FY '10, the service was reduced to serve the Makawao,
Pukalani, and Kula area. This service continues to under-perform at 16 percent of
the annual projection for, thus far this year. The Ala Hou program achieved
78 percent of its goal in FY '09. This fiscal year, utilization of the service is
minimal in South and West Maui. Our Capital Improvement Project, we have
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designed and began permitting for nine bus stops to comply with Federal, State,
and County standards; applied for 800,000 in Federal Bus Livability grants to
construct nine road...roadside stops with County matching funds of 200,000 that
is in the cunent...the projected CIP budget. We've finalized design elements at
the Queen Kaahumanu transit hub and executed a ten-year license agreement and
a $257,000 construction contract. Construction Notice To Proceed is expected to
be issued this summer. The next two pages that we have provided are the
program adjustments and are in line with the Budget Detail that starts on
Page 18-1, and so we have highlighted those line items where there are changes.
Let me briefly run through that and then we could proceed.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
MR. MEDElROS: On the program adjustments, we're looking at a 1,196,150...wait,
1,196,150 total reduction. Under Administration, Salaries and Wages the
Department-wide decrease is 15,900 due to one furlough day. A net reduction of
$14,064 was due to a one...in FY '10 EP increase stated erroneously. Correct
salary reflection is, is in for FY '11. The next item would be the MEO Ala Hou
program that, with a reduction of 339,871. The Federal Transit
Administration...pardon my voice. I'm getting over, I'm getting over something
that hit me this weekend.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MEDElROS: The Federal Transit Administration requires the Maui Bus to provide
Paratransit Service for persons with disabilities. The operating environment of
the Maui Bus Paratransit Service exceeds that of the Ala Hou program; therefore,
a higher utilization of the Maui Bus service has occurred and is expected to
continue into the future. Since the Maui Bus does not yet operate in the
Upcountry area, we've proposed to double the current Ala Hou service in this
budget proposal to address the needs of that community. Another item that was
discussed quite a bit this morning was the air ambulance program. When first
established, this program was based on 120 flights annually. We have seen a
decrease in helicopter usage due to the increase of another fixed wing air
ambulance service. Being that these are tough economic times, we eliminated the
$672,251 line item due to the funding shortfall. As of February, 2010, a total of
14 flights have occurred. I've broken out where those flights were from thus far.
Keep in mind, in FY '15 a total...FY '09, a total of 15 flights occurred that entire
fiscal year. The next line item, the Transportation Department Administration,
there's a $20,000 reduction in Professional Services category. This category was
used for our Washington, DC liaison. A, a category that we added money this
year was the bus replacement matching funds. We had to add $250,000 to match
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$1 million in Federal funding. Keep in mind this year we have some Federal
money; however, we do not have any matching money. So we need to provide
that matching money in order to start to draw down on those funds. Under our
General Services, General Service Transportation, a $400,000 reduction in the
MEO program is proposed by offering fewer rides to and from Kaunoa Senior
Center as this service has been underutilized, along with the elimination of
transportation services for non-Kaunoa programs. As a result of these measures,
less of the decrease in the popular excursion program was needed. Finally, part of
the method for this, this venue is the basic rate increase is proposed so that the
free routes. . .will now cost $1; the commuter routes will go from $1 to $2; and
the Paratransit routes will continue to be double the fixed route service, as
provided by law. . .which is set at $2. Also, monthly passes, either 30 or 35
dollars will no longer be issued in this current...this next budget proposal. We
have listed the analysis for you and provided some other information. Attached
are the various documents that we can go through as part of our discussion. So at
this point, this concludes our, the presentation by the County Department of
Transportation, and we're open for questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Members, in your proposed bill, it's
on Page 11; on your Program Budget, it's Page 20-1; and in your Budget Details,
is Page 18-1. The present budget request is $5,778,000 for the Department. So at
this time. . .the Chair would like to recognize Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. At this point,
Mr. Chair, we're just doing A Account, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: A Account, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Administration. Okay. I am going to ask questions
related to the air ambulance, and I know in B Account it's been zeroed out. So
I'll try to, you know, maintain...keep it focused on the A Account, as much as I
can. Under the Program Budget, under Performance Measures, Mr. Director,
good afternoon. You know, it mentions here number of air ambulance missions
conducted--16 in '09, 20 in Fiscal Year '10, and 20 in Fiscal Year '11. And, you
know, we heard some very compelling testimony this morning about the need for
keeping this funding in. One concern I have is I'm, I'm hope by, with this request
from the Administration to take out this funding, it doesn't send the wrong
message to the State. I don't know if you were here this morning, but our Budget
Chair read an up-to-the-minute, I guess, assessment on what's happening with the
TAT, and things change up there constantly, and nothing is for certain. And I'm,
I'm hoping that if they're looking at Maui County saying to the State that hey,
you know what, we don't want to participate or we don't need this or that. . .I'm
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just hoping there's no unintended consequence of, you know, the folks up at the
State Leg changing their minds on the need for our TAT. But my point is I'd like
to hear from you, and again, I know you stated your rationale because you're,
you're looking at less flights. But to go zero, you know, I don't know, I have
some concerns, but I'd like to give you the opportunity to further expound on this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: When we as the, and the Administration started this budget process
last year, we had to look at what are the core services of the County, primarily as
it relates to your Department under the Charter. Part of the direction from the
Mayor was whatever doesn't, then you put in a different line. . .and we would
look at it a different time, and that those items. . .were to be, other items that
related to the State programs were to be also called out and, and placed on the
side. Through the budget process as it came down to the end, funding became so
tight that the. . .the Administration had to pull out many of the stops that maybe
they hadn't wanted to pull out, really didn't choose to pull out. But the economic
environment changed, changed that decision process, and it became one of
looking at dollars and cents. And that, sorry to say, but when we look at it from
our Department's standpoint, you know, it does not fall into our core services.
I'm not trying to lessen the importance of the project. We have supported the
project in our budget for a number of years now, and that that started at a
different time. It started in an environment that had one fixed wing service that at
the time was not really providing the adequate service. So in the beginning, this
helicopter was flying to Honolulu on a regular basis which, which it really wasn't
designed to do. It was designed to stay within the County of Maui. But as the
second, as was mentioned this morning, as the second vendor came into the arena,
things changed. And you can see what you refer to with the 20 is a projection;
what I have put in the handout is the, is the actual for last fiscal year and the
actual as of February this fiscal year. So we're not trying to diminish the need for
it, it became...it finally came down to a dollars and cents issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. If I could ask now, during the...your, your,
Mayor's rounds in the community with the Mayor's proposal, what kind of
feedback were you getting from the community? At the, at the time you were
going around with the Mayor's proposal, was it brought to the public's attention-especially those in the rural communities, the Molokais, the Lanais, the Hanas-were the citizens made aware that this Administration was looking at taking away
or not considering funding this or offering the County's share of it? Did you get
any feedback on that?
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MR. MEDEIROS: The. . .way those were handled, it was receiving input from the
community At that time, the Administration did not have any set ideas on what
the budget would look like. So the venue for that was to solicit input from the
community
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So in essence since the Mayor gave us the budget, on
March 15 th is the first time the folks out in the rural areas are actually aware of it
now?
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I'm sure we're gonna get a lot of comments,
especially when we get out to the outside areas. That's all I have for now at this
point, Mr. Chair. I'll turn the floor over to my colleague, Member Baisa, who I'm
sure has a lot of other questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Mr. Medeiros, just a follow-up on
that...Member Molina's question. The reduction in the air ambulance was done
after the submittal of your proposal to the Budget Director. . .or was it done at the
same time in regards to your budget proposal?
MR. MEDEIROS: That, that was part of what we called out when we gave our budget or
when we discussed our budget with the Mayor, that this was put on the side as a
item that did not fall under our Department or our Charter, and that it was
a. . .State program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So on the human services side, health and welfare, that's not
part of the Charter that we look at?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . What we're looking at in, in our Department is, and, and, and
what is stated in the Charter is to facilitate the rapid, safe, and economic
movement of people and goods in the County of Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So nothing in regards to human services, then?
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, human services are some of the programs that we operate
on...that is operated, and actually the services that are given are human services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
NOTE: Silence.
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MR. MEDEIROS: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I don't know where to begin, but if
I'm in the wrong place just stop me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Actually, we are on. . .the A Account which is the personnel
area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's what I thought, but then -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And what Member-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --when I heard the question about the air-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --ambulance, I'm confused.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What Member Molina spoke earlier was about-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the goals and objectives. So, you know -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --since I let Mr. Molina touch on the goals and objectives, and
again it starts on, I think it was Page 20-4.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, four . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, these seem to be all intertwined so forgive
me if I'm asking a question, just tell me to hold it until later. But Mr. Medeiros
began his explanation by talking to us about the Mayor's goals which were to
maintain core services and maintain a safety net. And I am pretty surprised about
this huge cut in the Ala Hou program which MEO began and has run for, I don't
know how many years. And also another. . .accompanying cut that's even a little
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bigger, for a total of about seven hundred plus thousand dollars, and the
interesting part is if you add both of them up, they come to about 10 percent of the
Public Transit program, which strangely got no cut even though everybody else
got 10 percent. When I inquired about why this huge cut was done in the Ala Hou
program--and for those who don't understand, the Ala Hou program is for those
people that need a lot of specialized care in transit. These are not people that
easily walk to a bus stop and stand waiting for a bus to come by. They need more
help than that, and that's how it was started. I was informed that the reason for
the cut to Ala Hou was that it was duplication. Well, I haven't had it explained to
me how you duplicate something that MEO started. And, you know, I'm sorry
that I have...am as passionate about this as I am, but everyone has to remember I
was at MEO in 1970 when the first bus was bought and there were no public
services on Maui. That's why the service began. So I would like some
explanation as to why Ala Hou and MEO took the lion's share of the cut in this
Department, and that it was told to me that it's duplication. I cannot see the
fairness in that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I let Mr. Medeiros answer that question, Members, we
kind of straying away from the A Account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So anybody has any questions regarding the personnel area?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . . No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Everything is the same as 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So if there's no questions on the A Account, then. What
Member-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair? Chair, just one question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: In the, the salary adjustments then, the
15,900, is that accounting for the furlough adjustments?
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MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct, Council Member.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the premium pay has to
do with what?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. BOTEILHO: . . . Well, basically, overtime.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So that's your estimated overtime
amounts? Okay, then that clarifies that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Members, any more questions on the. . .A
Account? If not, we go to the B Account, where most of your questions came
from.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay.
. . . Ms...Councilmember Baisa is absolutely correct. . .where this Ala Hou
program originated. Upon the arrival of the Maui Bus service which is a fixed
route service, being though we received funding from the Federal
government. . largely to buy buses, we must comply with Federal regulations.
The Federal regulations require that for the people...for the, for the, for the group
that Member Baisa is speaking about that serve, that accommodation be made to
service those folks who are unable to ride the fixed route buses. The. . .service
runs three-quarters of a mile in either direction of the fixed route. When you look
at the island and the service that the Maui Bus operates and the routes that it
operates on, that encompasses pretty much all of West Maui, a huge portion of
South Maui, the majority...a good portion of Central Maui, and some of
Upcountry, Haiku, and, and Upcountry Maui within a three-quarter mile Of
course, that region is, is very spread out and three-quarters of a mile from
Makawao Avenue or from Hana Highway is, is not a huge area. For a
person. . .wanting to get to a doctor or wherever the case might be, the Maui Bus
offers. . .more options in that it must run seven days a week; it must mirror the
operational times of the fixed route, which is early in the morning to late in the
evening after sunset, and wintertime it's before the sun comes up. So this is a
huge step forward...this program is a huge step forward for the community that
needs this particular service.
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. . . They, according to law, a...we must be able to accept a reservation--`cause it
is a reservation--a reservation must be made no later than three o'clock the day
before it's needed. So this service is a very liberal service as the Federal
government has outlined. The Ala Hou service was developed as, as, as you said,
Councilmember Baisa, a while back when nothing else existed. It was, it was
financially constrained, it was geographically constrained, and so the service
hours and days of operation are nowhere near that now of the Maui Bus service.
And that's, that's the biggest difference when you look at it from the perspective
of the, of the user of the system.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you tell me how much of this service is provided on
Saturdays and Sundays and evenings, when most of this transportation is for
doctors or that kind of service?
MR. MEDEIROS: I'm sorry. This service...you mean?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The Ala Hou service.
. . . You're saying that this Paratransit Service has to be available seven days a
week and-MR. MEDEIROS: Right. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --all hours. And I'm wondering how much of this is done
on weekends, because most of those activities don't go on, on weekends anyway.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . I, I'm sorry. I don't quite get the, I don't quite get the question.
`Cause. ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's very clear, because if it's not, if it's not necessary
then it's not a big deal if it's there or not, and I'm wondering if the MEO people
have ever been asked to expand the service to include those days and hours if it
was necessary. Also I'm wondering if there was a survey or a discussion with the
people who use the service to find out...or were the seniors informed that this
change was going to be made? You know, this service was developed in response
to requests from the people that use it, and so I think we ought to be very careful
before we change it a lot and don't solicit their input. 'Cause there will be, you
know, quite a bit of concern about the change. Understand that I understand what
you're trying to do. I certainly understand transportation. I've lived it. But I
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think that in fairness to go this deep in making a change from one year to the
other is really not a fair way to go about it.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . We're in a, an extremely. . .tough economic environment and we
had to make these decisions. When we look at the, the activity within the Ala
Hou program, as I mentioned, the activity has been decreasing.
. . . And the activity on the, on the Maui Bus Paratransit has been increasing.
And so. . .by. . .having one entity with these broader. . .ranges of service will then
provide a, a more...because the, the, the fixed route, I mean the Paratransit
Service is a shared ride, we will be able to accommodate more folks within the
service. And by pooling it into one service it's economically...would
economically make more sense.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Following along that thought, is it the intent of your
Department to eventually put everything under one, one operation and eliminate
MEO?
MR. MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . Where do you think MEO's niche is? Or is there a
niche? If there isn't then, you know, let's just put the cards on the table and
everybody will know.
MR. MEDEIROS: MEO does an excellent job serving the seniors, serving the disabled,
you know, and serving the youth in the community We have many targeted
programs that, that, that are, that are enjoyed by the community There is
no. . .push to eliminate it at all. This would not even have come about had the
economy not changed, probably.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, you know, I'm going to give it a rest for now,
`cause I have questions about many other facets of transportation, and I'll defer to
my colleagues. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question. Maybe I don't understand.
The Maui Bus is required to provide Paratransit Services for persons with
disabilities and, and we have this MEO Ala Hou program that does the same
thing. Is there any difference between the Maui Bus and, and MEO doing this
particular services? In other words, does one go extra mile or. . .is there a
difference of some kind?
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NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: The. . .the Maui Bus service provides more opportunities. . .because
the MEO service, the Ala Hou service is constrained to certain days and certain-for instance, if you live in Lahaina and you want to come to Wailuku, the Ala Hou
service doesn't allow you that. It stays within a geographic area.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: That's just one of the similarities [sic]. The hours are, are also
different. There's certain hours of the day that it operates.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is Ala Hou, Ala Hou services, is it from door to
. . .(inaudible). . .

MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. Both, both are, are curb-to-curb type services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, and. . .Mr. Medeiros knows and, and I know we're
not supposed to, you know, say, but I, because I can shed some personal light on
having used that program. One of the challenges that I had in taking in my
husband on Ala Hou was that there were other passengers. They had to be
accommodated, and many times to do the, the constraints were from ten o'clock
in the morning until two o'clock in the afternoon. I would have to tailor all of my
husband's doctor appointments, other things, within the constraints of when a
driver, and not always...drivers were not always available. If it did go to the
other side, which on occasion it would because my husband had appointments
there, we always had to...and sometimes it was an inconvenience to other people.
They'd be sitting waiting, and my husband wouldn't be through at the doctor yet.
We got stranded one time . . . (laughter). . . on this side because of some mix-up,
and so all the other people had to be taken back, and they had to send, as a special
accommodation, a bus just to accommodate my husband. It, it was always that
we had to tailor our. . .our appointments and everything within that program. So
when I found out about Maui Paratransit, which was completely different, what it
did was it served the needs. I would call the day before or week before or
whatever, I would know that I would have somebody to come and pick up my
husband, take him where he needed to go. Then we would make arrangements,
we'd call and they'd come back even if we finished a little bit early, so we
wouldn't have to wait for this line of other people. So the service. . .actually
addressed the needs of the individual, and it was more targeted. Even if we
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wanted to go on Maui Paratransit, if it was not for a doctor, if, if my husband
wanted to go to a movie, you know, if we...and I think one time we did. We went
out to dinner and Maui Paratransit, you know, was able to come and get us. So
for me, personally, I can see why the ridership began to dwindle on Ala Hou, and
I will attest to the fact that it did go down dramatically. Because as soon as
people saw what was available through Maui Paratransit, all of a sudden it was
like wow, why am I doing this? Because now I can have something that I don't
have to constrain my activities, and make my doctor's appointments, or even
forgo, sometimes, doctor's appointments because it didn't fit within that schedule.
So I can just personally say that is why many of the people that I spoke to...and I
did advocate for Maui Paratransit. I'm sure the ridership . . .(laughter). . .
decreased a lot because I was acknowledging that the service existed. So I just
want to share that from a personal perspective--that the service was great, it was
wonderful. But the service from Maui Paratransit really fit the needs of the
individual, and I was extremely grateful for it. And so I just wanted the Members
to know why I would rather have...if services are needed Upcountry where Maui
Paratransit doesn't run, I think that I'd be more than happy to advocate for people
up at Upcountry area to get those services, because that is really critical. I guess
my, my only question is, you know, the $64,000 question, too, which is about the
air ambulance, and I think that, you know, what can you say? You know, you're
trying to do the best that you can, and I think it's for us, Mr. Chair, to decide
where we're going to find the money, you know, if we're going to fund that
particular item. And I, I understand that we're all trying to struggle. I guess the
only other thing would be as far as the fares go. . .if we were, you know, because I
know it's difficult to make change. Is there any kind of a, of a chit system or,
you know, where you buy these little...instead of exchanging money. . .where you
buy like...I know on the bus system, they have it in Oahu where you just have a
little...I guess it would be like a little ticket or whatever it is.
MR. MEDElROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, so that if people don't want to carry
money, if these are made available is that service available?
MR. MEDElROS: It's, it's not available, and the. . .the system is not large enough to
really provide a lot of these amenities that are. . .taken for granted in large
metropolitan areas. And in order for us to diminish the amount of cuts within the
Department and yet on the other hand try to generate revenue, we're trying to
keep things as simple as we can. So, therefore, a dollar per boarding for all of the
fixed routes or, or $2 in the case of the commuter or, or the Paratransit. . .and
elimination of passes. Then that...by doing that. . .every person that gets on pays.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: Part, part of the proposal, by the way, is--it's in the attachment on
Attachment F--is also to start charging for the Social Service transportation, a
dollar with every boarding. So we're looking at going across the board with, with
fees for all of this. It is not. . .probably ideal, but these times call for some
measures in order to try to generate fares, generate revenue-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: --for the system. And the Mayor has wanted to keep the safety net.
So for someone who, who. . .needs it, it's there. I mean if something happens to
your child and, and you need to get to the doctor--and, you know, we have some
pretty great operating hours--or the emergency room you can get on the bus and
get there. It may cost you a couple of bucks, but you'll get there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. No, I, I really appreciate it, and I just, you
know, on a personal note I want to thank you for providing the transportation,
because it was really a challenge for my husband to get from point A to point B,
because he could no longer ride in our own vehicle. So, Mr. Chair, I recognize
the importance of, you know, the services that we provide and the role that they
play in the overall community. So I whole heartedly support -MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --your request, and I just wish we were flush with
capital this year . . .(laughter). . . But that not being the case, I, I, you, we. . .all
doing the best we can with what we have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. First of all, I, I
do want to chime in and say that in terms of the helicopter ambulance services, it
is a service that I'm going to be advocating that we provide for. And it's been
made very clear about who the services actually reach, you know, for those who
can't necessarily be in, in close proximity to a fixed air wing ambulances. But on
your numbers when you said that--and I think you've summarized them. . .on
your handout.
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. . . You said that in 2010, 14 flights, and you've listed them here below.
. . . These represent every single call that was made to helicopter services? So in
the entire year since...well, let me, this is reflecting to 2010.
MR. MEDElROS: Yeah. That's eight months.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And for the last eight months.
MR. MEDElROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So these reflect the exact number of calls
made to the air ambulance services?
MR. MEDElROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So they did not respond to anything other
than these 14?
MR. MEDElROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: That's correct? And then in your
comment you made earlier about FY '09, only 15 flights.
MR. MEDElROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And again you're saying that the 15
represents the only calls that these...that the helicopter has responded to.
MR. MEDElROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
. . . Okay. And then if I can shift over to the, the Ala Hou program. So what I'm
understanding is that you're proposing a, a $340,000 cut from that program.
MR. MEDElROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then added to that is a
$672,000 cut for the air helicopter ambulance services.
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MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then if I move further down on 18-5,
you have another MEO Transportation Services from General Fund. Is that
representing also another $400,000 cut?
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So can you explain that third item
then? The MEO services...Transportation Services.
MR. MEDEIROS: If you go to Attachment E...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Attachment E.
. . . Where is Attachment E?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right on the back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In the back.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: At the very end?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second to the last page, I think.
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, it's on the handout.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no. . . .(inaudible). . . it, Sol-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: On the handout?
MR. MEDEIROS: It's on my handout-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. MEDEIROS: --Member Kaho`ohalahala.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: This, this is the, this...what this is, it represents the service to Kaunoa
Senior Center's Leisure Program that is provided by Maui Economic Opportunity.
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The. . .top one, two, three, four. . .five items are transportation services that bring
people from those areas to Kaunoa for services. And so in order to achieve
a...the goal, it's been, for instance in Paia-Haiku, it went from three times a week
to once a week; Upcountry, from four times to once; from Kihei, from three to
one; Central, from seven to four times a week and at...and the evenings, from
four to two times a week.
. . . In discussions with Kaunoa, they utilized...utilization of this has been
dwindling and the ridership has not been that, that great. With regard to the
PaceSetters, I'm not exactly sure what program this is. I mean this is a Kaunoa
program, but they've pretty much cut that in half. And then there's the. . .what is
this. . .the Senior Fair for Lanai, they've left that. The Senior Fair for Maui, it
was zeroed out. The, there are clubs that was zeroed out, and then, let's
see. . .Lanai. . .Lanai was cut from three to two. Then there's the Aloha Party
which was zeroed out, and then there's the Excursions that went from 271 to 204.
The Excursions, being the. . .popular piece of service the seniors enjoy. So this is
sort of the diamond of the program. And so to try to maximize the Excursions,
the top programs which were, which aren't that, utilized that much were, were
eliminated or reduced, I should say. And this was developed by, not by my
Department but by Kaunoa, Housing folks in Kaunoa, because the funding is in
the County Department of Transportation budget.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then so those programs and
seniors are all aware of these adjustments then?
MR. MEDElROS: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: You don't know. Okay.
. . . Okay. Thank you for, for clarifying that. I just wanted to understand where
all of these reductions were, and what they represent. So it's clear that you've
already talked about the Ala Hou, you've talked about the air ambulance, and this
clarifies that, that portion for me. Okay. Okay. I'm done, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And just a clarification, again. So the...this
particular program, Leisure Program, the. . .new requirements was based on
Kaunoa's request, Housing and Human Services?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, I wouldn't put it that way.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
MR. MEDEIROS: They didn't request it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: . . . (laughter). . . No. Kaunoa didn't request it. They just as soon that
it stay in here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you the one that removed it?
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, when we, when we looked at, at the budget, you know, you
want to look at what are the programs. There's another large program that's
serviced by MEO for Kaunoa. That's the nutrition program. Now that feeds
people. So, you know, that program wasn't looked at for any kinds of cut because
it, it feeds people. There are other programs that they provide that are providing
vital services. This, I think to look at it, it's, it's a leisure program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I, I know part of the goals for Housing and Human Services
was food, shelter, and the like. But I'm just wondering, I just look at one and I
tell myself, you know, we do have this annual program that we hold for the
seniors, which is Aloha Party, and guess what? No more transportation. So this
is a big concern. . .probably for, I think . . . (laughter). . . most of us. I guarantee
that. Okay. Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And I will. . .echo the same
sentiments, you know. I understand the word leisure, but these...our seniors have
worked hard, and many of them don't have the financial capability, they're on
fixed income. And already we raising sewer, water, and, and other rates, because
we have no choice on the matter, and now we're going to take away something
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else. So I'm not sure and we'll have to explore it, and also the air ambulance, I
agree. Just because I live in this district, I have areas that as remote as Lanai and
Molokai--I talk about Kahakuloa and areas further out that I have constituents that
if there was an emergency an air ambulance probably would be the best way to
get somebody out of there if there was a car accident or a major health issue out
there. So somehow, somewhere we've got to find the money for that. The
thing...the question I have again going back to the transportation now that's being
provided by not only the Paratransit and the other amenities or the other programs
we have, Mr. Medeiros, you feel that this is not a...that, that it, that it is a
duplication of service for what MEO has been providing for the seniors and the
Hala [sic] Hou program, right?
MR. MEDEIROS: It, it...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's your interpretation--that that, you're
reducing it -MR. MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --because it's kind of like a duplication of service.
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, if you want to say "kinda", but it, it actually is two...it, it
provides service to the same group -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: --but the level of service is very different.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And, and you're saying it's, it's even better
than the program MEO has been providing?
MR. MEDEIROS: Because it's not constrained.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Okay. I can live with that. I can
live with that. The other question I had is these fare increases--as it was brought
up by another Member yesterday--has affects on seniors and students who use the,
the system, especially our seniors, okay, who use it to go to the shopping center
and all that. But you brought up an interesting point and I wanted you to bring
that up because nobody asked you that question. You were saying that there was
a large increase of people that were getting on the bus and pretty much staying on
the bus all day riding these . . . (laughter). . . these circular routes. Would you
elaborate a little bit? 'Cause you remember you were telling me that the other
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day, and I thought that was an interesting dynamic And I had somebody call me
last night and mention that, that's why I thought I'd bring it up today. You were
mentioning about this group of people that seem to get on the bus and kind of just
use it pretty much all day as air conditioning, as a means of having something to
sit down on. So would you explain a little bit to the rest of the Members what you
were telling that...telling me last week?
MR. MEDEIROS: In, in the summer, in the summer when it's hot or when we get into
the Konas and it's the doldrums, the air conditioning is very comfortable.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: And so, and so folks do that. However, that isn't a lion's share of the
people that use the service. That is a, that is a small minority of the service, but
that is still some of the people that use it. And the service generally is there to
help you with your daily needs--to go to the, to go to the bank or to go do what
you need to do or go shopping. But, yes, that does occur -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: --to some degree.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and, and we've discussed this. You feel by
adding this dollar for the circular routes or the village routes and the reverse
routes and all those, you're going to drop down...I see over here that you put
down the free fixed routes 977,245 riders, and now you're estimating 583...and
it's not really a free fixed route, but you're comparing it to the previous year free
fixed route. So you're looking at almost a...not quite 50 percent, about
45 percent -MR. MEDEIROS: Forty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --drop.
MR. MEDEIROS: About a 40 percent drop.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About 40 percent drop. Okay. Forty percent drop
in ridership, primary because you're charging a dollar? Okay. What, what, why
would that big drop occur? Why in your mind why would that big drop occur?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . If you ride the bus--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: --and you ride the, the central routes and the Lahaina Villager route,
you will see that there are many youth riding the bus . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS:
. . . there are many seniors riding the bus. There are many
people. . .who ride the bus, that get on at the low-income housing developments.
So not everyone has the economic wherewithal, say for a car, so that the bus
becomes their means of transportation within their economic limits By charging
the dollar, it's going to limit the person's choices of how many times they ride
the bus. You're not necessarily going to just jump on the bus to...for whatever
reason, you're going to think about if there's a dollar.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: We're not trying to constrain people.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: We're, we're looking at this to try to generate revenue. And we
know that there is going to be a certain reduction because the people that are
using the bus. . .most likely not use it to the degree that they're using it now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so what you're basically saying is
it's...as an, as a ridership, you might not have repeat ridership or somebody might
not be doing the short routes that they're doing right now--maybe from here, they
might jump here and then get off down the road the next block because it was
free. Now they got to pay dollar, so they're going to think about it and get on
here, and get to Kaahumanu or someplace else. And so that's what you're kinda
referring to--that some of this...but I'm concerned when you say it then takes
low-income seniors and students. . .out of the picture or, or somewhat out of the
picture. Because, to me, those are the ones that...and especially our seniors who
are on fixed income, who, who, you know, who need that opportunity. If we hurt
them, that's not a good idea--is it, Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: This wasn't an easy decision.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I...
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MR. MEDEIROS: In other words, none were, none...all the others weren't an easy
decision also -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: --and this is driven by our economy. And, and the bottom line, I
think what we need to keep in mind is we're trying to preserve the safety net that
the Maui Bus has created for folks, that it will be there when they need it to get to
someplace and can count on it to, to get things done for their daily needs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I won't argue with that. And, and I, I just...and
again the point I'm trying to make is we tend to hurt, every time we do something
like this, the people that may need it the most are seemed to be affected the most.
And that's what I'm saying. And, you know, I, I don't know if there's another
means. It's like the air ambulance. I go back to that. I mean, you know, to
eliminate that without telling people, that was not great idea. But that's another
story. But I'm just saying that if you feel that way, then fine, but I think we've
got to look more deeply at this because I don't want the very core people that need
to use it and should be using it and can be using it. . .not having the means to use
it, even at a dollar. So and, you know I've been one that supported some kind of
fare even in these circular routes. I've said that two years ago. So I'm, I'm
thankful for what you're doing, but I think there's some, some more study that has
to be done. So, Mr. Chair, I guess it'll be up to us to, like you said, carry the ball
and figure this out, yeah. So thank you, Mr. Medeiros, really, thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Medeiros, you know, in your
Fiscal Year 2010, you estimated ridership to be 2,066,000 ridership, and your
estimated revenue. . .that you have here. . .is $1 million. Why the disparity?
MR. MEDEIROS: Largely because of the passes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You mean to say that. . .that 2 million-whatever ridership that
you have will only generate $1 million?
MR. MEDEIROS: Because, because of the free routes--of which there are five--and
because of the passes. Okay, let me put it, let me frame this. If. . . if you were
going...coming from West Maui . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question.
MR. MEDEIROS: Sorry.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . I'm looking at the Maui Bus. . .fixed route boardings.
Fixed route boardings are paid boardings. Your estimated boarding is 2,066,000.
I'm looking at Page 20-3 of your. . .Program.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . The...on Page-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty dash three.
MR. MEDEIROS: --20-3 is, is a projection that we made a while back, and that's just
our best guesstimate.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you're not hitting that? . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. MEDEIROS: No. What we anticipate hitting. . .this year, this year is 2,264,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And that's based on your passes?
MR. MEDEIROS: That, that's, that's, that's. . .based on what -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you're . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. MEDEIROS: --we're doing now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You could have duplicate riders or the same rider for so many
days.
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, what we're doing is we're looking at, at, at what the current
trend is, and that the trend is, is continuing to grow, and that that was our
best...that's what we anticipate the ridership will be at the end of this fiscal year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So on those boardings, if you add a dollar more, then if you go
dollar on each route, then we're looking at generating $2 million in revenue?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, that is correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Rather than 1 million?
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct. And, and largely because of the elimination of the
passes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. To generate the same amount of money. . .and to
reinstate the passes, what would be the rate be for those passes? Shouldn't be
talking about rates and fees but -MR. MEDEIROS: I, I know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --trying to get . . .(inaudible). . . yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: But it's kind of like the whole package. I'd really have to get back to
you on that. We'd have to do an analysis of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If you could. And, and the last thing that I have,
because the State of Hawaii is now expanding the pickup for school kids from one
mile to mile and a half, I understand that now we, we have childrens [sic]
catching...I think it's the Maui Bus or the fixed route...that free bus route.
So. . .we talking about charging that route a dollar?
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I think we . . .(laughter). . . we need to take a look at
that, Members, in regards to helping our school children getting to school. Thank
you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to follow up
on your question to Mr. Medeiros with regards to that, the State and Board of
Education and their decision they're doing with expanding that from...that radius
from one mile to a mile and a half. Did, did they ever consult with you,
Mr. Medeiros, because of the unintended consequence now, as Mr. Pontanilla had
alluded to?
MR. MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'm surprised a Board of Education member or anyone
from the State Department of Transportation didn't network with you on that
because I think, you know, 'cause now it has an effect. And now so kids who will
have to, I guess, use the Maui Bus, so now we're going to subject them to paying
a dollar or so, yeah. So I think it would have helped if...I don't know who, I
don't know if maybe, Mr. Medeiros, you want to initiate the discussions or
comments, but I think it would have helped if the Board of Education had sought
our input on this because it has an impact on us in, in a different way, yeah,
Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. May, maybe, you know, when we deliberate, we can
take a look at this--maybe discounted passes for school kids or even discounted
passes for seniors--at that time, so-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Oh, yeah, if, Mr. Chair, can I a question now
related to bus shelters or would you ask that we wait?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's, let's complete this first before we go-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --into . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. I can go ahead and hold off.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Yeah-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and, and thank you. And I, and I slipped my
mind about the bus passes. You know why, what, what was...first of all, what
was the revenue we were deriving basically off of bus passes?
. . . Approximately what was the monthly bus pass revenue?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . Well, we were...we're selling, recently, the last couple of
months-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: --we're selling about 500 passes. And some are $30, some are $35,
so it'll be about $175,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Because, you know, to me that's
another thing--whether we talking our students, Mr. Chair, which I agree with
you, or our seniors, or people that work on the west side or the south side that use
the bus every day. For them to make sure they have a dollar or two or three in
their pocket, back and forth, sometime can be really. . .a pain, you know, to put it
mildly. And I understand what you're saying. I mean to me if you would raise it
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to 50, 55 and I think you have to go back and do some calculations, where these
people would still see the benefit and still want to use it, and we still could retain.
Because again that's money upfront, you got the money. If they don't use it
tomorrow or if they don't use it the next day, it's our money. I mean it's not like,
you know, you get anything more at the end of the month, right. If you use it
20 times, you use it five times you don't get anything more. Obviously, they're
figuring that they're going to use it enough times to make it worth the $35
obviously. But I'm just saying that, you know, to me that was...and, and I meant
to say that and it just slipped my mind, but, you know, why not keep it. Because,
yes, the students, I would agree; seniors, another group I would agree, and these
long commuters who every day...hotel workers and other people that work on
these far ends, in other words, south side, west side, live in Central, live
Upcountry. To me, it's well worth it to have that. They'll buy it, they'll buy it,
and the money is in hand whether they use it or not, we've got the money. To
make them get $2 every time, I mean just seems to be really, really...a real
hardship that we don't need at this point. But again if you could look at the
numbers, Mr. Medeiros, we would appreciate it 'cause I think it's time to, to start
looking beyond that, you know, beyond this. You know, the safety and, and the,
the, the health net that the Mayor talks about, I agree. But there's also that
economic safety that they are people that really have and utilized--my
brother...my nephew is one of them. He tells me he's enjoying it every day, he
catches it from here in Wailuku, goes out to Kaanapali...to KOR, he's a chef out
there. He works eight, nine, ten hours, he's really tired, he gets back on the bus,
comes home, he can rest, and he says, you know, it's terrific, uncle, you know, I
really, really enjoy it. I know a number of people, my clients and other people I
know that use it every day. They really like it, and the bus pass is really key,
because they don't got to carry money every time. You know, so I, I really
believe we've got to look at that, because it's something very, very important,
seniors, children, and, and our working people. I mean, and that covers a lot of
people, but I think we need to look at that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. . . . (laughter). . . Yeah, we have a lot of work in
this area, in regards to Transportation. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. Let me finish up my part of the bus, bus
passes, and then I do have a few other questions -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --if that's okay. I do want to second the motion, if it's
possible, and I understand what Mr. Medeiros is trying to deal with, he's
desperately looking for money. But, you know, if we're going to institute charges
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where there have never been charges before, it might be a really good idea to
consider stuff like student passes or senior passes. I know TheBus does in
Honolulu. I remember Mayor Fasi was big on, you know, that way those who
cannot pay just, you know, will have some consideration, because we don't want
to make it any harder for people to get around Maui. So we've got to really look
at the numbers before we make a decision, and I would like to see consideration
also of some kind of a pass for people that need some economic assistance. You
know if we have to charge those who can pay more, fine, but those who cannot
we've got to take care of them. Because we're going to haul them around one
way or another. You're gonna haul them around in public transit, you're going to
haul them around on the MEO bus, you're going to haul them around someway.
Anyway, question for Mr. Medeiros. Don, can you tell me, you know, this
Paratransit, can you tell me what it costs for a boarding on the...an average cost
on the Maui Paratransit?
MR. MEDEIROS: A passenger will pay double the fare. So if they're coming in say
from Kihei or the west side or Upcountry where there are fares...where those
routes have fares, they pay double the fare. So it's a dollar, so they pay $2.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And what is the cost to the County per trip? What is the
average cost?
MR. MEDEIROS: We're running about $42.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Forty two dollars. Doesn't this sound a bit like a taxi
with a . . .(laughter). . . I mean, you know, it's really expensive--because I'm
looking at your goals and performance measures. And on the passenger trip for
MEO's...that kind of service, it was 22.39, and the next year it'll be $23; and for
the other one, your passenger trip for the fixed and commuter routes is only 3.19
and 3. That's pretty expensive. And if you go Upcountry, it's probably going to
cost you as much as you cost you to go like to, almost to go to West Maui. So
something to think about, the cost of that. The other thing I wanted to ask was
this morning I was tuned into a radio show and an item was asked, and I didn't
know the answer, and I figured now, now is my chance to ask Don. The person
was looking for money, of course, you know, everybody's looking for money for
transportation, roads, and all of the above, and said what happens--you, I am sure
you know--to that $5 that we charge each rental car. Where does that money go
and who gets it?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's a State charge. It's an airport charge.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, so all of the money goes to the State and we get
nothing out of it?
MR. MEDEIROS: And they're raising it, my understanding is. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that was a question that was asked on air, and
Mr. Couch wasn't really sure, he thought it might go to the State, but -MR. MEDEIROS: It does.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you know, they weren't sure. I think they were trying
to figure out how to add a dollar for the County, and I didn't know if that was
possible or not possible. But, you know, we're so desperately looking for money
that wherever, you know, we can get another buck, it's another buck. So that was
another thing I wanted to ask you about. And other than that, I don't see much
point in beating this to death. Thank you. And I do want to add my please let's
try and figure out how to keep that helicopter service because, you know, I'd hate
for it to be me that needs it. Thank you . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm sure, like I say, we have our work cut out,
and-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, we do have some services that, you know, we
need to provide, especially those seniors, the kids. . .of course, safety in regards to
the helicopter service. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just wanted to let Don know that the, the counts
that you have may not be exactly accurate, because I can attest to the fact
that...and the MedEvac helicopter came after there was...in fact, it was involving
I think one of our Maui buses . . . (laughter). . . at the end of Puukolii Road.
MR. MEDEIROS: It was included.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And so that was...
MR. MEDEIROS: Previous fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was...oh, that was previous fiscal year? Oh,
that's why. Okay. 'Cause I said I knew that that happened.
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MR. MEDEIROS: Time tends to...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I know it . . . (laughter). . . Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: . . . (inaudible). . . get away from us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, again I just want to support
the, the comments about somehow figuring out a fare for seniors and students. I
want to say that I caught the bus one day from West Maui to get to the airport, on
that very first bus leaving at 6:30 in the morning. And I didn't realize that on a
school day that stop was in Maalaea, and we waited and I couldn't understand
why we took so long to wait, but it was to get the connecting South Maui bus to
Maalaea. And immediately upon that connection, the entire bus was filled with
students going to Baldwin High School, and in fact, it was standing room only.
So I, I want to say that here is an instance where we're going to be now adding
another dollar to that fare where students are simply trying to get to school. And
we're going to be actually trying to subsidize the bus on our students now is, is
going to be an added burden, not to mention that of seniors. So I would be very
strongly supporting some mechanism of trying to find a way to fund this and, and
give relief to the people that truly need that, that relief. My only other question is
the $7 million amount that's in here for the public transportation, that's the
amount to operate the Maui Bus?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, we, we, we put the figures together to include the, the...it's the
operations plus the County money that we used as matching, you know, to buy the
buses. So it's sort of like a comprehensive figure of what it actually costs.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Where is that breakdown then?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . I, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm, I'm looking at our schedule
here...
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, that, that was on the handout that I gave.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So you further break down that
$7 million amount?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. If you look at, if you look at the budget document on
Page. . .18-5, the, the item there is...index code 917729.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: That's what I'm looking at.
MR. MEDEIROS: So it's 7,377,500.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Correct.
MR. MEDEIROS: Then you add, on the handout, another $360,000-plus, which is what
we used in County matching funds for those five buses.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: . . . Just, just to show sort of a figure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So where is that reflected in your
proposed...
MR. MEDEIROS: It's not.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: It's not reflected here?
MR. MEDEIROS: No. Because that occurred last fiscal...that occurred...the funding
occurred last fiscal year but, you know, it's yet to be paid. It's being, going to be
paid in this fiscal year. But-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. MEDEIROS: --what I was trying to demonstrate was the cost of the service this
year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: But you also have another matching fund
item that's 917717, which is just above that, for another $250,000. So what is
that matching for?
MR. MEDEIROS: That, that would be matching funds, if this budget is proposed to buy
buses, and that would be for next...for the next fiscal year to match Federal
funding. But because it's a proposed budget, it's not in this year's budget, you
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know, I didn't feel that that was fair to put that in. I was just trying to show an
accurate...what the accurate cost of, of these, of the service.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Now, now I'm getting even more
confused. Because...
MR. MEDEIROS: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: No. Because I'm...we're looking at
these documents.
MR. MEDEIROS: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: This is what was handed to us, and if
you're going to change the figures here, then we need to be alerted that these
figures are no longer correct because, as I try to follow this amount. But my, my
basic question is, is the $7 million figure that's here, in my document, represent
your current contract to the Maui Bus?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So that's what it costs us to, to
operate the transportation...public transportation system?
MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And you don't anticipate an
increase in that amount as I'm, I'm showing, except for a $350,000 amount you
said that you're adding as part of . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: I apologize. The only addition for the, for the fiscal year...well,
okay.
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. . . The only change to this budget document from '10 to '11, as far as the Maui
Bus is concerned, is we're looking...we're asking for $250,000 as matching to
buy buses which is not currently in this year's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: So we're asking for it in next year's budget, which is the proposal
before you today, to match Federal money to buy buses.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And that's the 250 amount. I, I...
MR. MEDEIROS: That's correct. And it's...where is that?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: It's just above.
MR. MEDEIROS: That's-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: 18-5?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Eighteen-five.
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, it's, it's the top line, the top line.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: Over to the right, you'll see it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Now that's clarified for me.
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you. Sony.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Then my question is on our current
transportation. . .transit, public transit program, this is a contract to, to the vendor?
MR. MEDEIROS: The 7,377,500?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. That is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then how long is that contract for?
MR. MEDEIROS: It's a five-year contract.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: A five-year contract. And where are we
in the five-year contract?
MR. MEDEIROS: We're in the second year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: We're in the second year of that five-year
contract. Okay. Okay.
. . . And then is the amount the same for the five-year? What is...what does that
contract reflect in terms of the cost? Are we looking at an increase in that...in the
remaining years out? Or is that reflected in your contract?
MR. MEDEIROS: In, in the proposal, we were looking at a 5 percent increase each year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Each year?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And that's, that's in your contract then?
MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So why is it not reflecting a
change between the current fiscal year and the new proposed year?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, things are tight, and so we were going to negotiate that with them
as we come up.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So you are going to negotiate that.
So...okay. Okay. I just want to understand how, how we're. . .accommodating
the current contracts and why there's no change. But I noticed a big change from
the previous '09 to '010 [sic], and then now no change. Now what happens if that
is...where are you in the negotiations, then, for this?
MR. MEDEIROS: Nowhere.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Nowhere?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Nowhere . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So you're making an assumption, then,
that there will be no change.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So, should we know about that?
. . . When do we know about that?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . Well, we'll...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: You, you're saying that you're going to
be negotiating a. . .contract increase. So if it's not reflected in our budget, when
are you going to notify us of that change should you not be successful? Or are
you saying right now that there will be no change?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . Until, until we have a budget document. . .I have nothing to talk
about.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: No. No. Okay. We have a budget
document, it's right before me.
MR. MEDEIROS: It's proposed.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: It's a budget document that's proposed
by you for this amount. So, but you're saying that you have a contract that you
still have to negotiate as to what will be next year's lease contract, but you're not
reflecting that anywhere. So my question is when do you inform us of that
change?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . I don't know. Until I have a budget for 2011, until we know what
those figures are I, I'm, I'm at a loss to answer your question. I think maybe you
should provide it writing and we'll get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I, I think it's a basic question--how
you're going to pay for something that you say you have the obligation to pay for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, yeah, Mr. Medeiros, so the number that you show is
basically an estimate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(inaudible). . . Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and when this budget is finally approved, based on that
estimate, that's the number that you're going to be working with?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: If that's the end number.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Well, Chair, I want to clarify. The, you
said you have a contract that has an increase of 5 percent each year. This figure
does not represent any increase. So I'm just asking when is that going to be
verified? And you said you're in negotiations. So my question then was, then
when do you inform us about the result of your negotiations? 'Cause it's, if that
dollar amount changes, then when are we going to be notified of that change?
MR. MEDEIROS: I didn't say we were in negotiations. I said we're going to have to
negotiate.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . Okay. Okay. Well...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Well, one more attempt. So the number that you show
is a 5 percent increase from previous years?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, it's the same.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Same.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's the same.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: The same.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The same?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: It's flat.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . So, Mr., Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Medeiros, you know, this...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, wait, I'm sorry. Mr. Kaho`ohalahala-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --are you done?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Well, I think I, my question is clear. I
just am not getting a response to . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
. . . Go ahead, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, Mr. Medeiros, you know, I looked from
'09 to 2010, right.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was the 13 percent, $837,000 increase or
something like that. . .increase from the previous year. . .why was that?
Why...what caused that tremendous increase? Because you said 5 percent, okay.
So from '09 to '10 we went 800,000 or approximately 13.31 percent increase.
Why?
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MR. MEDElROS: In the previous fiscal year in '09-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDElROS: --we hadn't budgeted. . .for the ADA service. It wasn't, it wasn't full
blown yet, and so we had to make an estimate on what this ADA service was
going to cost us. And so this fiscal year, we added $500,000 into the budget to
account for the ADA service-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You talking-MR. MEDElROS: --the Paratransit Service.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Paratransit. Okay. Okay. . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. MEDElROS: Yes. The Paratransit. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's 500,000. And the other 300,000-MR. MEDElROS: Was the 5 percent increase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
The 5 percent increase.
So again,
Mr. Kaho`ohalahala's question was real simple, and I, and I guess the question I
have for you and again maybe you gotta come back, tell us what. . .but wouldn't
you want to put the 5 percent increase just in case? Because now you'd have to
come back and ask us for $368,000 as a 5 percent. You'd be short 368,000.
. . . I'm just asking.
MR. MEDElROS: In this economic times, we had to shoot, shoot for a flat budget.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MEDElROS: And so that's what the goal is at this point--is to shoot for a flat
budget. So we'll have to go back, once the budget is completed and the ordinance
is made, and then we will have to go back when we normally do, you know, do
the new contract up in the new fiscal year or addendum-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MR. MEDEIROS: --to the new contract, we will have to do that then.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I hope Roberts listening right now, because. . .you
know, you've got to help us out, Roberts. And I guess that's all I got to say. And
good luck, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, Members, this is Program Budget and-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you can move this dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anyway-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . no more dollars to move. But, good luck.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just one more question I forgot to ask in that round. And
that was...it was a revelation to me today on your Attachment F, Don, where you
talk about the various fees that you'll be charging, or fares--to see Social Service
transportation a dollar. When the Mayor spoke to us, she mentioned three
categories of fares--and she talked about fixed routes, circulator routes, and
commuter routes. But nowhere was Social Service transportation mentioned. So
it was kind of a revelation today. So if I'm to understand this correctly, all the
MEO services, you will pay a dollar to ride?
MR. MEDEIROS: That the County funds, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All, any, any program that you fund?
MR. MEDEIROS: The County, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if you're going to go to Kaunoa, you're going to go to
wherever, as long as the County's paying for it, you will have to pay at least a
dollar?
MR. MEDEIROS: That correct-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's per way, per passenger trip.
MR. MEDEIROS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Does anybody know about this? . . . (laughter). . . I mean
this is kind of a surprise today.
. . . Has it been discussed with the seniors or anybody?
MR. MEDEIROS: I do not know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, yes, I guess we'll find out soon enough. Thank you
very much. And, of course, the whole system to collect, it will have to be set up.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Any more questions on the
B Account? If not, the C Account basically is continuing the leasing of a copy
machine So I want to call on Mr. Molina. Members, if you can turn to Page -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page is that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --OP, Page 31-24 in your Program Budget. . .and this is bus
stops and shelters for the Department. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Medeiros, the, the proposal, I believe, was a $1 million proposal, County
funds for the bus shelters. And I'm just trying to get a clarification on the
document you handed out to us, Bus Stop Capital Improvement Project. Is that
something totally different than the 1 million for the bus shelters? I'm just trying
to understand the difference, bus stop, you know. 'Cause it says here: design and
begin permitting for nine bus stops to comply with Federal, State, and County
standards. Is this the same...okay, bus shelter, bus stop, same, same...
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. And in your document it says the...so
the County's contribution would be 200,000 and then the Federal, the Feds give
us 800.
MR. MEDEIROS: Eight hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, so our, our contribution is 200 then, right?
Okay. 'Cause I guess when the Mayor came down with her document, it just said
$1 million for bus shelters. So in essence we're just...our contribution is just
200,000? Okay. And these are nine bus stops, and at what. . .regions will these
bus stops. . .are being proposed for construction?
MR. MEDEIROS: We have them throughout, we have them throughout the, the
community Would you like me to read them off?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. I'll start in, in the, in the Wailuku area. This would be on
Waiale Road, this would be fronting Ka Hale A Ke Ola.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: In Kahului, we're looking at putting two in--one on either side of the
road fronting Luana Gardens. In Makawao, we're looking at Makawao Avenue.
It's actually at the entrance to Makawao Ranch Acres, down the bottom there,
across from Eddie Tam. In Kihei, we're actually looking at four. . .on either side
of Uwapo, which is the old Suda; and on either side of Ohukai, which is the very
next stop south of that. And then in Lahaina, well, we're needing to upgrade the
Papalaua Street upgrade, largely for infrastructure so that we can deploy the
ramps a little more safely than it is now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. You know it's been brought up
about, you know, the visitors. We have a heavy usage of our Maui Bus by the
visitors, especially in Kihei, Lahaina. All right, are you able to provide that
information for us in terms of the visitors using our bus?
MR. MEDEIROS: Overall, as we, we watch how things go, we've got about a 60/40
relationship--it hasn't really changed that much--with 60 percent being the local.
There are certain times of the day on certain routes that you will have more
tourists on the buses. But by and large when you look at who's really using the
buses, it's really the residents of the island that are using the buses.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, and I bring that up, Chairman, because,
you know, we've talked about the fee increase, and the question becomes is it fair
to only hit the kamaaina with the free increase? And maybe an additional dollar
for a visitor, and especially with maybe helping...now, now the Highway Fund
will supply the funding for, for this, the bus shelter, Mr. Medeiros, am I correct?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: This will come out of the Highway Fund?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes...no. It will come out of the CIP Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, CIP Fund. Okay.
. . . Okay. That's basically what I wanted to know, but again tying it into rates
because, you know, especially in Kihei, Lahaina, you...that's where our visitors
would be using our County bus. So I don't know if maybe down the road we take
a look at that consideration, maybe, you know, an extra dollar for the visitors.
That way they can help offset some of our cost to the County. So anyway, and
with the proposal, you believe you can get the nine bus stops constructed this
fiscal year?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . If the funding comes, yes. We've done the design, we've done
the planning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Construction.
MR. MEDEIROS: We've done all of that. We're sort of ready...shovel-ready is the
term.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Shovel ready.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, all right, well, as the old saying goes,
we'll believe it when we see it but-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --you know, we just hope it can get -MR. MEDEIROS: Amen.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --if that, if that be the case. All right. Thank you,
Mr. Medeiros. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The one across Eddie Tam. . .Community Center, we'll
name after you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . . (Laughter). . . Yeah. Well, thank you.
ALL: . . . (Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Molina Bus Stop . . . (laughter). . . Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, another thing that, what you call, Member Molina,
jogged my memory. I wanted to explain to Director Medeiros why I asked for
that bus routes and the ridership. As you know, the people in Kula have been
begging and begging for a bus route. And so I was hoping that from some kind of
information that's available--and I know that this will not be appreciated
. . . (laughter). . . by anybody else but, you know, the folks in Kula are kinda
feeling left out of this public transit thing, and they say we pay taxes, too, so
what's wrong with us, and we're far away, and we're old and we have all the
problems. But anyway I was hoping we could identify some area or some route
that was underutilized that maybe we could cockroach couple routes to pick one
up in the morning with a like, kinda like a commuter route so that they could have
one way to come down and one way to go back. And that's what I was hoping to
gather. But from this table, I can't really tell because it has totals for the, for that
route but it doesn't say the times where, you know, there's plenty people and
when there's two or three. And I have seen those buses with one or two people in
them--like everybody else has. So that's what I was trying to do. Any response?
MR. MEDEIROS: With regard to a route in Kula?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Please.
MR. MEDEIROS: We're actually working with the Kula Community Association.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Of which I'm a member, thank you . . . (laughter).. .
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MR. MEDEIROS: And, and they have given us a proposal with stops to look at. It's
rather robust. . .and so we need to take a look at that . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Kula, Kula Community Association is rather
robust. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm very proud, proud of them. Thank you
. . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And do we have statistics on the makeup of the
ridership, you know, students or tourists, or anything of that sort?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, 'cause I know I was just visiting with
Member Kaho`ohalahala and he was saying that on boat days, the, the bus
coming, you know, out of Lahaina, it's jammed with people. So, you know, to
me, Mr. Chair, it's like okay, if local people being displaced, that's an impact
caused by tourism; therefore, we need to kind of look at, all right, if tourists are
benefiting from air ambulance, if they're benefiting from whatever, maybe to
provide a quality visitor experience we also need to look at the tourist dollars that
we're so willing to hand out as maybe a possible source for revenue. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe a question for Corporation Counsel.
Because some of these transportation are Federally funded-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --can we do that. . .special rates for tourists?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: . . . Well, in general, as you know, fees, you know, must
cover the cost of the service. And for the public transportation, it's pretty clear
that the County heavily subsidizes those. So I don't think we're in risk of
overcharging people. I'm not familiar with particular Federal regulations that
would prohibit different categories, but you're already talking about...and I
believe other jurisdictions have reduced rates for seniors and students. So I, I
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believe it seems like it would be possible, but I'm not aware of any kind of
particular Federal regulations that would prohibit that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Maybe, Mr. Medeiros, would you know?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MEDEIROS: . . . I'm not an attorney-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: --but, you know, we have to be very careful about discrimination-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
MR. MEDEIROS: --I mean, you know, that's just a given. In most municipalities and
in, in, in a lot of metropolitan areas that I've gone to, it's, it's just the opposite.
The tourist services are either free and they're limited services, they're culled out
to do something specific. . .or they're provided by a private entity. We're a little
different on this island and we're, of course, more constrained on this island. So
usually the way you would probably want to go about that is. . .and this is a tough
thing to say, but it's the reality of it--that the fares would be higher, and then you
would offer all these discounts via passes. You know, but keep in mind that we
are a small system. . .and that to go into various passes can create other financial
problems in order to handle it. When you're a huge entity that you have the smart
cards or whatever, then it's easy to develop these. It's, you know, you can do this
on a, on a very fluid basis. But we, we don't have that luxury. The system is not
that large.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: When we looked into fare collection systems, we were looking at
somewhere up of $700,000 just to get, to put something...to buy something and to
put it together. And Honolulu did that and they had some severe problems over
the years. And I remember them...a comment in the newspaper where they spent
$3 million and it wasn't working. I'm not trying to pooh-pooh it. I'm just saying
technology, sometimes, it's a double edge sword.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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. . . One more question. You know, on your. . .fixed routes, the loops, you have,
like say, a Wailuku loop, Wailuku loop reverse. . .what if we were to just have
one loop with one bus that goes round and round, pick up and drop off, save one
bus per loop?
MR. MEDEIROS: I'd have to get back to you with the, with the calculations on that.
The reason that it's there is, there's, really there were two reasons. One, it was so
popular, the buses were so overloaded, we needed to provide some sort of...to
ease it somehow. We...and the, the second piece was generally from the
passengers. You know, keep in mind the success of the systems is due to the
passengers and the passenger input-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: --and to, and that we, we look to them to guide us as to what has to
happen. Let me give you a case. You live in Paukukalo, you want to go to Sackn-Save, so you catch one bus, you pay a dollar, you go to Sack-n-Save, you do
what you what. When you're done, you can catch the reverse bus and come back
home for a dollar. If we had just one with a circulator, you're going to get on
Sack-n-Save and you're going to run the whole route for an hour and come back,
and as a passenger told me. . .my ice cream will melt -ALL: . . .(Laughter). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: --in that time that that takes me to go an hour.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: Real life.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That was a good one.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: And so to alleviate the load, to the lighten the load and spread the
load, we did that, and it allows people to get to routes faster.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
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MR. MEDEIROS: And it's hard to tell where people are...you know, we've got many,
many people using the system and it's trying to fit the . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I think I get your point.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: Fine.
ALL: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think I get your point.
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The, the thing is, because of it being free, you know, it's easy
to jump off, up and, you know, and go and come back. But once we implement
this one-dollar route or whatever we go with, then I guess you have to relook. . .you know, the way we operate our bus system, because maybe the
ridership is not going to be that great. But hopefully, you know, it continues to be
used frequently. So I thought I'd just bring up that question in regards to trying to
save some money here, but that's something for you to analyze once we start
charging. Members, any more questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino...oh-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. I also wanted to echo the same
sentiments as my colleague as far as an area that is greatly concerning to me now,
is Waihee because of the fact of the bus cuts for the schools--that right now
Waiehu and some of Waiehu Kou does not have any bus services to the school.
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And you're well aware of . .that the children there...traffic is a, is a nightmare,
and now there is no opportunity for them to have any bus service from Waiehu all
the way across to Waiehu Kou. I think Waiehu Kou III, and even that I don't
even think they...I think there's no buses now because it's more than a mile and a
half. And so now these, these students are all forced to either walk to school
and/or, you know, have their parents drop them off, and in the afternoon vice
versa. I know the Waihee community has asked for a bus. They used to have bus
service many, many moons ago, they remember. And I think the answer you gave
them was there's no turnaround point. I think that was the, the response, there's
no real turnaround point in, in that area. But I also would like you to, you know,
and that's another robust community that is starting to get very active and
speaking up with what they need out there. And I think bus service to that area,
especially at least to the school, if not right past the school, is so important with
the amount of kids that are now being displaced. Okay? So I don't know if we
can run smaller buses, you know. You know, I don't know if you can run the,
you know, need to run the full size buses. I was thinking that, you know, as an
idea is maybe running some of the smaller 25-passenger, you know, minivans
where, you know, that would help, and easier for turn around as far as even down
by the school and all that. But something to consider. You know and again the
people are not, I mean, are willing to, to pay something, 'cause they were paying
something in the school. But now they stopping it entirely, not even giving them
a chance, you know. And so now you got all these kids that are being displaced.
And something that, again, we already have other suits and other things
happening in this County because we're taking over State responsibilities. But
you know what? The bottom line, it's our children. It's our children and they
need to be taken cared of, so it's our responsibility. You know so something to
think about, Mr. Medeiros. You know and, and please look into it if you can and
get back to us on that one. Thank you, sir. I know you're not happy, because
you're not smiling anymore.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Uh, thank you, Mr. Victorino.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? If not, I'd just like to remind
all of you that we'll be meeting at the Kihei Community Center tonight at 6:30;
and tomorrow we'll be at the Hannibal Tavares Center; and on Thursday at
Helene Hall in Hana. So, Members, that's all for the Department of
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Transportation. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Thank you, Mr. Boteilho, for being
here. Thank you, Mr. Pablo and Ms. Villarosa. And thank you, Staff. So the
meeting of Budget and Finance Committee is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: WKM)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ADJOURN: 3:08 p.m.
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